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“There is a new energy at Taylor Woodrow. We
have accomplished a great deal in the past year
and have a positive view of the future. We have
undergone radical and meaningful changes and
we look forward to building on these in 2003
and beyond.”
Iain Napier, Chief Executive

02 Chairman’s Statement

04 Chief Executive’s Review

06 This is Taylor Woodrow

18 Operating and Financial Review

32 Remuneration Report

46 Group Cash Flow Statement

24 Corporate Social Responsibility

40 Auditors’ Report

47 Notes to Financial Statements

26 Board of Directors

41 Accounting Policies

67 Five Year Review

28 Directors’ Report

43 Group Profit and Loss Account

68 Shareholder Information

30 Corporate Governance

45 Balance Sheets

IBC Principal Operating Companies

Registered Office
Taylor Woodrow plc
2 Princes Way
Solihull
West Midlands
B91 3ES
Tel +44 (0)121 600 8000
Fax +44 (0)121 600 8001
Email: twplc@uk.taylorwoodrow.com
taylorwoodrow.com
Registered in England and Wales number 296805

Developing our

Group Financial Highlights
Year ended 31 December

Group turnover
Group operating profit
Profit before taxation
Basic earnings per share
Adjusted basic earnings per share
Dividends per share
Net Debt
Net Gearing
Return on average capital employed
Shareholders’ funds per share

Profit before taxation

2002

2001
As restated

£2,208.6m
£257.7m
£233.1m
28.2p
29.8p
7.4p
£247.8m
17.6%
20.1%
254.4p

£2,138.4m
£224.2m
£202.3m
25.3p
26.6p
6.7p
£297.6m
21.9%
18.3%
245.9p

Adjusted basic earnings
per share

(before exceptional items)
£ million

Dividends per share
pence

(before exceptional items)
pence

245.1
211.0

6.7

24.3

153.6

00

7.4

29.8
26.6

6.12

01

02

00
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A year of growth
■

Return on average capital up from 18.3% to 20.1%**

■

Operating profit increased by 14.9% to £257.7m.

■

Profit before tax up 15.2% to £233.1m.

■

UK housing margin up from 14.4% to 15.0%**

■

North American housing margin up from 9.2% to 12.7%*

■

Adjusted earnings per share up 12.0% from 26.6p to 29.8p

*before goodwill amortisation
**before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items

future…
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Chairman’s Statement

“Our vision is to be the leading developer of living
and working environments in the UK and other
chosen markets.“
The last year has been one of decisive
action for Taylor Woodrow and the
continued implementation of a strategy
which has provided a clear focus and
objectives for our business and,
together with our operations in North
America and Spain, has made us one
of the UK’s largest housebuilders.
In 2002 we
■ Realigned our business to provide
a more efficient and cost effective
structure
■

■

■

Strengthened our board and senior
management
Consolidated our senior management
team and our support operations into
one central office in the Midlands
Acquired Journey Homes in Arizona,
continuing our strategic US expansion

These achievements, designed to provide
better value to our shareholders, also
provide the right products and highest
levels of service to our customers and
first class career prospects and working
conditions for our staff.

…by delivering
results
2
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Steady progress and increased
dividends
Whilst realigning our business, we have
grown our profitability.
Group turnover increased by 3 per cent
to £2,208.6 million (2001: £2,138.4
million). Operating profit rose by 15 per
cent to £257.7 million. Operating
margins, before exceptional items
and goodwill amortisation, improved
to 12.8 per cent (2001: 11.4 per cent).
Profit before tax increased to £233.1
million (2001: £202.3 million) and
return on average capital employed,
before exceptional items and goodwill
amortisation, improved from 18.3 per
cent to 20.1 per cent. Adjusted earnings
per share rose to 29.8 pence, an increase
of 12 per cent over last year. In line with
our stated strategy to exit the property
investment business, we sold four
properties for £59.7 million.
The Board recommends an increase
in the final dividend for 2002 to
5.2 pence from 4.7 pence in 2001.
Together with the interim dividend of
2.2 pence paid on 1 November this
makes a total dividend for the year of
7.4 pence, an increase of 10 per cent.
Subject to confirmation at the annual
general meeting on 7 May 2003, the
dividend will be paid on 1 July 2003
to shareholders on the register at
close of business on 30 May 2003.
This dividend will be paid as a conventional
cash dividend but shareholders are once
again being offered the alternative to
reinvest some or all of their dividend under
the Dividend Re-investment Plan, details
of which are contained in a separate
circular to shareholders.
Senior Management Changes
On 18 November 2002 two new
appointments were made to the Board.
Peter Johnson became Finance Director.
He brings with him extensive experience
gained on both sides of the Atlantic.
He was Group Finance Director of
Henderson plc from 1991 to 1998.
After its acquisition by AMP he held

a number of roles, latterly as CFO for
Pearl Assurance. He was also Finance
Director of Norwich Union Life.
Andrew Dougal was appointed a
non-executive director. He had previously
spent 16 years with Hanson in a number
of positions, including five years as Chief
Executive. His experience in the building
industry will be of great importance in
our future cost reduction activities.
On 4 March 2003, Sir George Russell
stepped down as Deputy Chairman and
was succeeded by Norman Broadhurst,
who has been a non-executive director
for three years.
As announced, I will be retiring from the
board and as your Chairman on 29 May
2003, when my present agreement with
the company reaches its expiry.
Sir George will continue as the senior
independent director, for a period of
up to one year, and will lead the
search and selection process for my
successor. This will ensure continuity
of non-executive representation on
the board during this transition.
The senior management team has further
been strengthened. Dr Ed Hinchliffe
joined the Executive Committee in
December in the new role of Commercial
Director. He was a Senior Vice President
of Six Continents plc, and brings with
him extensive experience in change
management, supply chain operations,
technical development and sales and
marketing. His skills will bring a greater
depth of knowledge and fresh ideas to
our business.
Our People
Our excellent results, the realignment of
our business and office relocation would
not have been possible without the energy,
commitment and professionalism of our
people. To my board colleagues, our
management and all our teams I express
appreciation for a job well done in 2002.
Thanks are also due to our customers,
trading partners, shareholders and
the other stakeholders in our business

for the continuing support they give
Taylor Woodrow.
Looking Ahead
The company is well placed to take
advantage of the opportunities and
face the challenges that lie ahead.
Housing remains the key driver of
growth, accounting for 90 per cent
of operating profit, but our skills in
property development, construction
and engineering position us uniquely
amongst our peer group in being
able to offer, from within our own
operation, the wide portfolio of
expertise so important in today’s
complex development environment.
As an international business with a
diverse portfolio, we recognise that our
activities can have significant implications
for the environment. We are committed
to developing a culture, through training
and communication, in which protection
of the environment is a common objective
shared with all our clients, partners and
suppliers wherever we operate.
In developing our future we will continue
to invest in our landbank; in the
excellence of our design and product
range; anticipate future trends and the
requirements of our customers, as
well as nurturing the entrepreneurial
spirit of our young people who will
shape our business in the future.
I take great pride in my association with
Taylor Woodrow over the past four and
a half years. Much has been achieved
during that period and with the changes
of the last year now in place, I believe
2003 marks the beginning of a new
era for the company. This provides
a firm base from which we can grow
our business in both the UK and
North America.

Dr Robert Hawley, CBE
Chairman
4 March 2003
Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002
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Chief Executive’s Review

…by looking ahead
and fulfilling our promise
“Our business strategy is to create sustainable
shareholder value by growing, both organically
and by acquisition, as a developer of living and
working environments.”

An excellent performance
2002 was a landmark year for Taylor
Woodrow – a year of considerable
progress, improvement and growth
and I am pleased to be able to report
excellent results across our business.
Taylor Woodrow is a very different
company than a year ago. The strategic
realignment of our UK business is now
complete. Our senior management and
support services are consolidated into
one central office in Solihull in the West
Midlands. Cost benefits of £21 million
will come through by year end 2003,
with ongoing full year benefit of
£30 million by year end 2004.
Nineteen regional operations have been
consolidated into ten, combining our
house building and commercial property
expertise to reflect our skills in the areas
of housing, mixed use and urban
regeneration projects.
The construction business currently
accounts for around 5 per cent of operating
profits. This business competes effectively
in its external markets and is important to
us in providing specialist expertise to
4
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support our integrated development
activities. At year end, the value of
in-house work stood at £161 million,
24 per cent of order book. This will
increase to around 30 per cent by the
end of 2003.

Our business in Spain and Gibraltar
has continued to perform well, with an
operating margin of 24 per cent, operating
profit rose by 33 per cent to £11.6
million. Our land bank in this region
stands at 1,508 lots, 4.9 years supply.

act quickly with greater cost efficiency.
We will explore all development
opportunities, particularly those complex,
urban regeneration schemes that utilise
our expertise so well and produce
healthy returns for our shareholders.

Business review
Housing
Operating profit from housing worldwide,
before exceptional items and goodwill
amortisation, increased by 34 per cent
to £255.4 million (2001: £190.8 million)
on turnover of £1,751.8 million (2001:
£1,523.0 million). In total we sold 8,370
homes and 3,182 lots.

Construction and Property
Construction performed well, reporting
operating profit before exceptional items
of £11.7 million. At year end, its forward
order book stood at £673 million, up 13
per cent on 2001. In property, operating
profit before exceptional items was
reduced by £26 million to £15.7 million,
reflecting the fall in income as a result
of the continued sale of our investment
portfolio and the soft market conditions
in the commercial property market.

Likewise, we will enhance our business
through organic growth and acquisition
where the right opportunity arises. North
America provides an extra dimension
for growth and opportunities for value
creation will be continually compared to
those available in the UK.

In the UK, our housing business performed
well, completing 6,238 homes during the
year, up 19 per cent on 2001. Operating
profit, before exceptional items and
goodwill amortisation, increased to £177.6
million (2001 £127.7 million) and average
selling prices increased by 13 per cent
to £182,000. Operating margins improved
to 15 per cent from 14.4 per cent in
2001. At year end, our forward order book
was the strongest it has ever been at
£260 million, 25 per cent ahead of 2001.
In North America operating profit, before
goodwill amortisation, increased by
24 per cent to £66.2 million. Total home
and lot completions rose by 18 per cent
to 4,563 mainly due to the acquisition of
Journey Homes – which now operates as
Taylor Woodrow Arizona – in August 2002.
In Florida we enjoyed another buoyant
year, completing 305 homes at an average
selling price of £378,000. Our Monarch
brand in Toronto also performed strongly,
with 1,030 home sales at an average
selling price of £112,000. In Texas, we
completed 52 homes at an average
selling price of £287,000. California has
returned to profit this year. In 2003,
average selling prices in this region will
reduce by around 25 per cent, reflecting
our chosen strategy to reposition the
business to the middle market.
Overall, operating margins improved
to 12.7 per cent and at the year end
the North American order book stood
at £329 million.

Land
We have a strong land bank in excess of
3 years output. In addition our overall
strategic land holdings, which do not
currently have planning permission,
represent some 57,000 potential plots,
the majority of which are held under
option and all at discount to market
values. This source of land will continue
to assist us in our overall objective of
delivering good margins.
In recognition of the importance of a
national strategy for land acquisition we
have restructured our resources and have
introduced a Core Land & Planning Team
to apply disciplined process and asset
management to optimise the quality and
supply of our land. We are involved in
two of the Government's major growth
areas, namely Stansted in Essex and
Ashford in Kent where we have significant
land holdings under option. We also
acquired a development site for up to
1,100 homes at Church Crookham, Fleet,
where we expect to obtain planning
permission later this year. In addition to
our residential land bank, we also have
commercial land capable of supporting
4.1 million sq ft of accommodation.
Future Growth and Prospects
Taylor Woodrow is a clearly focused
housing and development business.
Our unique mix of skills, combined with
our streamlined structure, enable us to

We have a number of strategic priorities
over the next twelve months. Customer
satisfaction is of paramount importance
and we have set stringent targets in each
of our businesses to improve our record in
this area. We are determined to become
the employer of choice in our industry
providing a safe, rewarding and enjoyable
environment for our staff. We have
recently conducted an employee survey
and will use this as a benchmark for
annual improvements in employee
satisfaction. Our overriding aim remains
enhancement of shareholder value through
earnings growth whilst delivering first rate
levels of return on capital employed.
We start 2003 in good shape with solid
demand for our product across all markets.
Last year, we estimate new house price
inflation to have been between 8 and 12
per cent, depending on geography and
type of home. In 2003 we expect this to
fall to more sustainable levels. In North
America the outlook remains good and
we anticipate house price inflation of
between 3 and 5 per cent over the year.
There is a new energy at Taylor Woodrow.
We have accomplished a great deal in
the past year and have a positive view
of the future. We have undergone radical
and meaningful changes and I look forward
to building on these in 2003 and beyond.

Iain Napier
Chief Executive
4 March 2003
Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002
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This is Taylor Woodrow

…by focus
on customers
We consistently strive to improve the products
we offer as well as developing new ways of
working and better standards of customer care
across all our businesses.
Our philosophy is more closely aligned to that of a retailer – the customer comes first – than a more traditional
house builder. In the UK our Customer Journey is designed to reduce the stress associated with moving
house by making the process as smooth and easy as possible. We offer homebuyers additional services such
as interior decorating, garden design and after-sales maintenance. In North America, our CARE programme
(customer, attitude, respect & excellence) in Arizona benchmarks the relationship with customers against
nine criteria, with quarterly reviews. In California, buyers can tailor the interior of some of our homes to suit
their particular requirements. In our construction business we apply similar criteria. One example is our
15 year relationship with Tesco developing prototype schemes and other new initiatives tailored to Tesco’s
changing needs.

FA C T S & F I G U R E S
BRYANT AT WARWICK

Bryant Design
allows customers to
personalise their
new home.
The Tierra Rosa – one
of our entry-level
Homes in Arizona.
Tesco’s 80,000 sq ft
store in Altrincham,
Manchester opened
in November 2002.

6
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Bryant Homes’ development at
Warwick is one of our largest,
consisting of 800 homes with
fifteen house types and a range
of apartments. Prices range from
£147,000 for a two bed apartment
to £290,000 for a four bedroom
house. The development has been
carefully designed to reflect the
unique character of the town, using
materials that blend effortlessly
into the local environment.
Our new marketing suite provides
a high-end retail experience,
demonstrating our homes, the skill
with which we build them and our
range of design options and garden
landscaping. The style and layout
enhances our customer experience
through a comfortable, informal
environment for them to browse
through brochures, chat to our site
staff and consider their choices in
an unhurried way.

Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002
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This is Taylor Woodrow

FA C T S & F I G U R E S
■ AQUA ON QUEENS QUAY
Aqua on Queens Quay is located in
the heart of Toronto’s downtown
waterfront, close to the CN Tower,
the Sky Dome, the Hockey Hall of
Fame, the theatre and business
districts and the ferry to Toronto
Island. Public transport is on the
doorstep – this is city living at its
best. A resort-style rooftop lounge
includes sundeck, whirlpool, changing
rooms, sauna, steam room, equipped
fitness room, BBQ area and outdoor
patio area, all with spectacular water
and cityscape views

…by develop ing living and
working environments

■ ADDITIONAL FEATURES
– Opened for sales Summer
of 1999
– Occupancies started:
November 2002
– 16 storey condominium
– 273 suites comprised of studios,
one bedroom and two bedroom
suites, some with dens
– Sizes range from 410 to
1,711 sq ft

Working closely with our customers we
create environments tailored to their needs
and aspirations.

– Prices started from C$86,900
to over C$655,000

This means we are focused on the integrity of our design, the best locations, first class amenities, beautiful
landscaping, natural habitats and efficient, effective office environments.
In Canada, our Aqua development offers spectacular views of Lake Ontario and city living on the doorstep.
We are also working on one of the largest developments in Toronto. Waterview will consist of eight
buildings with views of the Toronto skyline. The complex will offer extensive recreation amenities for the
local residents including swimming pool, gym and fitness facilities; theatre, library, cyber lounge and golf
practice putting green and golf simulator. In Florida and Texas our country club communities provide golf,
tennis and other leisure amenities to enhance the residents’ living experience. Our Mirasol development
hosted the PGA Honda Classic in March 2003. In the UK, our Bryant homes are very often specifically
designed to fit in with the local surroundings, using indigenous materials and reflecting regional architecture.

Mirasol at Palm
Beach, Florida offers
spectacular views of
the 18th green from
the swimming pool.
Princes Way, Solihull,
one of our property
developments, built by
TW Construction, is
now our central office.
Creating the village
idyll at Throop, Dorset.

Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002
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This is Taylor Woodrow

…by application of skill
Glasgow Harbour
Quartermile,
Edinburgh
Macintosh Village,
Manchester.

FA C T S & F I G U R E S
BALTIC QUAY
This development showcases our
combined strengths – TW Construction
is building it and TW Developments
is both selling the homes and
developing the commercial part of the
scheme. Indeed, it was our skill in
property development that first
highlighted the opportunity for the
site in the mid 1990s.
Set at the southern tip of the stunning
Gateshead Millennium Bridge, Baltic
Quay will comprise a collection of 241
apartments, a cinema, four-star hotel,
restaurants, bars and a 1200-space car
park. The first phase of 108 apartments,
released in August 2002, were all sold
in the first weekend.
Work started in 2001 and the
development is due for completion
in 2006/7.

We offer integrated development solutions
using our core in-house skills of housing,
commercial development, construction and
specialist engineering.
Being able to offer this unique mix of expertise gives us the capability to tackle the most complex schemes
and we are currently involved in some of the largest projects currently under development in the UK.
Baltic Quay is a £100 million regeneration scheme on the banks of the River Tyne in Gateshead. Our Macintosh
Village development in Manchester’s southern gateway offers 50,000 sq m of residential units and 3,000 sq m
of commercial space. With our partners, Royal Bank of Scotland and Kilmartin Property, we will be developing
20 acres on the site of the former Edinburgh Royal Infirmary to include residential, retail, hotel, leisure facilities
and office space. Glasgow Harbour will transform a derelict site on the Clyde into 2500 homes together with
retail, leisure and hotel facilities.

10 Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002

FA C T S & F I G U R E S
GREENWICH MILLENNIUM VILLAGE
Greenwich Millennium Village is one of
our most prestigious urban regeneration
schemes. It provides a solution to the
problems of creating new towns and
villages; a real alternative to the sprawling
new housing estates that lack the
amenities that make for civilised living.
By building to the highest standards,
using best practice and the most
advanced technology, we have
established sustainable methods
of construction and innovative
construction techniques for the future.
Through recycling plasterboard, for
example, we significantly reduced
construction waste and found a
more cost effective way to dispose
of materials.
The Village includes almost 1,400 new
homes, 20 per cent of which will be
available for part purchase through
shared ownership or for affordable
housing units. Our homes in this
development all carry the BREEAM
eco homes excellence rating.

This is Taylor Woodrow

…by innovative
thinking
Research and development is important to our
business and we will only remain competitive
by enhancing our products and services and
improving our efficiency.
The home of the future will utilise many new techniques, increasing efficiency and flexibility of design.
Many of our homes are already wired for interactive living using Category 5 wiring and coaxial cables
for transmitting data, audio and video. The Botanica home in California is one example.
Techniques such as 3D modelling help us manage many design interfaces as we build, making us more
efficient. Factory manufactured products such as “pod” bathrooms and kitchens provide off the shelf, high
quality finishes and easy installation which supports our aim of zero defects on handover to our customers.
At Newcastle Great Park we have built six homes with solar panels in the roof. Over the next two years,
working with their owners, we will test how much energy they produce to assess whether this type of
technology could be applied more widely.

Newcastle Great Park
will offer 2500 energy
efficient homes and
commercial development
set in 442 hectares
of parkland.
This “pod” bathroom
is at Montevetro, our
prestigious development
in London, where some
apartments sold for
over £1 million.
The Botanica home
in California.
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ONE OF THE “CUSTOMERS”
EMILY
“Warm, stylish and well built. If only
I could find a man like that.”
Emily adores her cosy terraced house
and loves being able to shut out the
world. The floors throughout her home
are suspended, which means they’re
insulated, draught-proof and actually
warm to the touch. So it’s no wonder
Emily likes snuggling up for a quiet
evening in. Now about that man...

…by doing things differently
Chloe, Sam & Lily
Are used for family
developments.
Chris and Carrie
Are used for mixed
use development and
urban apartments.
Neil
Is used for urban
living and sites
promoting
environmental
awareness.

We know that people are passionate about their
homes and want us to share their enthusiasm
and be honest with them as individuals.
Bryant Homes’ advertising campaign focuses on people – not product – breaking the mould of traditional house builder
advertising. The campaign features a cast of characters from different stages of life to represent the varied mix of
people who are Bryant customers. These virtual customers were developed after an intensive period of market
research and reflect the products and services we offer to cater for individuals and their different ways of living.
The campaign uses bill board advertising – the first time this medium has been used by a UK house builder – backed
up by the national press, lifestyle magazines and home interest magazines.

14 Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002
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This is Taylor Woodrow

Bringing golf to
you, courtesy of
Bryant Homes.
Fairbridge is
a national charity
supporting young
people in twelve
of the most
disadvantaged
areas in the UK.
Working Well
Together.

…by being
a good neighbour
We are determined to play a constructive role
as a solid corporate citizen through acting
responsibly within the environment and using
our corporate status to put something back into
the communities in which we operate.
Nowhere is this more important than in safeguarding the well being of communities living in and around
our developments, protecting wildlife and looking after natural habitats. We support a range of charities
throughout the world and through sponsorship seek to contribute to the community in a different way.
Bryant’s Bringing Golf to You is aimed at encouraging a new generation of enthusiasts, offering free tuition
for beginners and tips for accomplished players. Among the charities we supported last year was Fairbridge,
a national charity helping young people to develop the confidence, motivation and skills they need to get
more out of life. We are committed to increasing awareness of safety in our industry. We sponsored the
Working Well Together bus which toured sites throughout the UK delivering the safety message to workers.

16 Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002

FA C T S & F I G U R E S
ALAQUA LAKES
Our Alaqua Lakes development in
Florida comprises 515 homes, a
seven-acre community park and
pavilion and The Legacy Club golf
course. It carries the prestigious
Audubon certification. The Audubon
Signature Co-operative Sanctuary
Program was created to provide
a comprehensive approach to
environmental planning. The aim
is to balance wildlife conservation,
habitat enhancement and
environmental improvement
with development.
The design of Alaqua Lakes was
based not on what to remove,
but what to preserve. Prior to
development, we restored
149 hectares of wetland, enhanced
water quality and quantity and
installed a storm water management
system for recycling and irrigation.
This is an ongoing, externally verified,
programme incorporating
environmental planning, wildlife
and habitat management, chemical
use reduction and safety, water
conservation and outreach
and education.
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Operating and Financial Review 2002

…by growing
profitably

Taylor Woodrow delivered strong profit
growth during 2002 with operating profit
increasing by 14.9% to £257.7 million.
Pre tax profit was 15.2% higher at
£233.1 million.
A £12 million exceptional charge
was included in the results for the
reorganisation of the UK business
announced during the year. In 2003,
cost savings of £21 million are expected
rising to an annually recurring £30 million
of savings.
Return on average capital employed,
pre goodwill and exceptional items,
increased to 20.1 per cent (2001:
18.3 per cent). The balance sheet
remains strong, with gearing at 17.6 per
cent (2001: 21.9 per cent). Shareholder
funds increased by £49.7 million during
2002, to end the year at £1,405.9 million
representing 254.4 pence per share.

Highlights
■

Return on average capital
up from 18.3% to 20.1%**

Housing
■

Operating profit increased
by 14.9% to £257.7m

■

Profit before tax up

2002

Group operating profit
£ million

257.7

■

UK housing margin up from
14.4% to 15.0%**

255.4

190.8

Employed (%)*

21.7

18.6

Operating Margin (%)**

14.6

12.5

Return on Average Capital
165.7
139.3
110.2

*before average goodwill of £244.2 million (2001:

■

North American housing

98

99

00

01

02

£252.4 million)

**before goodwill amortisation of £13.1 million (2001:
£10.7 million) and exceptional items of £10.4 million
(2001: £8.4 million)

margin up from 9.2%
to 12.7%*
Operating profit by geographical market
£ million
■

Adjusted earnings per
share up 12.0% from
26.6p to 29.8p

*before goodwill amortisation
**before goodwill amortisation and

■ United Kingdom 168.1
■ North America 66.3
■ Rest of World 23.3

exceptional items
(2001 : £224.2 million)
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2002

2001

Average Capital Employed (£m)* 844.2

793.0

Operating Profit (£m)**

177.6

127.7

21.0

18.9

Return on Average Capital
Employed (%)*
Operating Margin (%)**
Home Completions

15.0

14.4

6,238

5,226

*before average goodwill of £240.6 million
(2001: £252.4 million)

**before goodwill amortisation of £12.9 million (2001:
£10.7 million) and exceptional items of £10.4 million
(2001: £8.4 million)

The UK housing division, which accounts
for 63 per cent of Group operating profit,
pre goodwill amortisation and exceptional
items, benefited from strong markets in
2002. Bryant Homes, acquired in March
2001, achieved good volume growth with
6,025 home completions (2001: 5,115)
and 444 lot completions (2001: 657).
The average sales price increased by
12 per cent to £176,000 (2001: £157,000).

2001

Average Capital Employed (£m)* 1,177.5 1,142.9
Operating Profit (£m)**

224.2

15.2% to £233.1m

UK Housing

The housing businesses located in the
United Kingdom, North America, Spain
and Gibraltar all had a successful 2002.
Worldwide housing completions rose
18 per cent to 8,370 (2001: 7,096)
with operating profits, pre goodwill
amortisation and exceptional items,
increasing 34 per cent to £255.4
million, (2001: £190.8 million).

Bryant Homes contributed £171.9 million
to Group operating profit and achieved
an operating margin of 15.6 per cent
compared to 14.8 per cent in 2001.
Capital Developments, which will no longer
be reported separately, completed 213
homes (2001: 111) with an average selling
price of £354,000 (2001: £333,000).
Operating margins were 7.4 per cent (2001:
5.3 per cent). All UK homes in the future
will be sold under the Bryant Homes brand.
At the year end the UK housing land bank
consisted of 20,657 owned or controlled
plots with outline planning, representing
some 3.1 years’ supply. In addition to
this there is a strategic land portfolio of
approximately 12,700 acres. The land bank
contained approximately 47 per cent green
field sites and 53 per cent brown field sites.
Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002 19

Operating and Financial Review 2002 continued

Following stronger than expected
growth in 2002 a significant slowing
in UK house price inflation is expected
in 2003 to more sustainable levels.
In London and the South East, house
prices are flat at the upper end of the
market. Taylor Woodrow’s exposure
to this segment is limited and it is
expected that the broader market
will continue to be supported by
low interest rates and the long
term national imbalance of supply
and demand.
At the end of the year the UK Housing
business had a strong forward order book
of £260 million – up 25 per cent on the
previous year.
North American Housing
2002

2001

Average Capital Employed (£m)* 306.7

308.5

Operating Profit (£m)**

66.2

53.4

Employed (%)*

21.6

17.3

Operating Margin (%)**

12.7

9.2

businesses. Since acquisition in
August 2002, 211 homes have been
sold at an average selling price
of £80,000.

Spain and Gibraltar Housing
2002

2001

Average Capital Employed (£m) 27.3

23.8

Operating Profit (£m)

North American housing operating profit,
pre goodwill amortisation, increased to
£66.2 million (2001: £53.4 million) with
return on capital increasing to 21.6 per
cent from 17.3 per cent.

11.6

8.7

Employed (%)

42.5

36.6

2002

2001

Operating Margin (%)

24.0

20.7

Average Capital Employed (£m) 196.4

306.2

Home Completions

293

301

Operating Profit (£m)

Return on Average Capital

Operations in Florida enjoyed strong
sales in line with our expectations,
at all sites. In 2002 305 homes
were completed (2001: 316) at an
average selling price of £378,000
(2001: £393,000).

2002 but is distorted by several large
developments, including K2. The
underlying business has also been reduced
due to the poor market conditions.

Investment Property

11.1

16.7

5.7

5.5

Return on Average Capital

Housing operations in Spain and Gibraltar
continue to perform well. Taylor Woodrow
is principally active in Mallorca, Costa
Blanca and the Costa Del Sol, and
achieved an operating profit of £11.6
million (2001: £8.7 million) at a margin
of 24 per cent. The second home market
in Spain held up well, with demand
particularly strong from the UK on the
back of a strong pound and low interest
rates. Return on average capital employed
for these housing operations increased
to 42.5 per cent (2001: 36.6 per cent).

In Canada, operating under the Monarch
brand, another year of strong performance
was delivered as we repositioned our
product mix towards lower price points.
Completions in 2002 were 1,030 homes
(2001: 871) at an average selling price
of £112,000 (2001: £130,000).

Employed (%)

Taylor Woodrow has continued to
divest the global investment property
portfolio with the sale of four properties
during the year generating proceeds of
£59.7 million. The portfolio, with a
year-end value of £183.9 million (2000:
£259.9 million), now mainly comprises
the St Katharine’s Dock Estate.
Construction

Return on Average Capital

Home Completions

1,839

1,569

*before average goodwill of £3.6 million (2001: £nil)
**before goodwill amortisation of £0.2 million (2001: £nil)

Total housing completions
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Total UK housing completions
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1,572
98

1,779
99

1,919
00

01

02

20 Taylor Woodrow plc Annual Report 2002

Total housing completions for the
North American operations reached
1,839 (2001: 1,569).
At the same time, we successfully
repositioned our product mix toward high
opportunity segments in the low and mid
market. Underlying operating profit was
£69.1 million before allowing for currency
translation differences.
Most of the increase in completions
is due to the inclusion of Journey
Homes, which was acquired for
£29.7 million in August. The existing
management team joined Taylor
Woodrow thus facilitating an easy
integration and the business has
performed in line with expectations.
This business is anticipated to move
into the mid market over the next
few years utilising the Taylor Woodrow
brand in common with the other US

The Californian business has been making
good progress following operating losses
in 2001. It is anticipated that average
selling prices will reduce by approximately
25 per cent in 2003 as the business
completes its repositioning into the
mid market. To achieve this, investments
were made in mid market during 2002.
At the end of the year the Californian
land bank consisted of 706 lots (2001:
438 lots) representing 2.7 years supply.
Completions in 2002 were 241 homes
(2001: 340) at an average selling price
of £709,000 (2001: £742,000).

Going into 2003 the order book for Spain
and Gibraltar was £46 million – up from
the £31 million at the same time last
year. The land bank at the end of the
year consisted of 1,508 plots (2001: 1.581).

The total North American land bank
with planning permission, now contains
14,954 plots compared to 9,800 plots
at the end of 2001, which reflects
a 3.3 year supply.

Operating Profit (£m)*

11.7

12.2

Operating Margin (%)*

3.2

2.8

Profit Before Tax (£m)

21.1

22.8

(2001: £1.4 million)

Property
North American – home and lot completions
Trading Property

■ Lots
■ Homes

2,724

Average Capital Employed (£m)

2,305

Operating Profit (£m)*

1,373
98

936

2002

2001

94.8

78.4

4.6

25.0

Return on Average Capital

1,046

Employed (%)

4.9

31.9

Operating Margin (%)*

5.3

17.8

1,839

1,622

1,669

1,569
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Land bank – plots owned/controlled with
outline planning consent

■ United Kingdom 20,657
■ North America 14,954
■ Rest of World 1,508

Going into 2003 the total order book for
North America was £329 million – up
31 per cent on the previous year.

2001

*before exceptional items of £0.6 million

824

Taylor Woodrow operates from two sites
in Texas – Avalon, Houston and Steiner
Ranch, Austin. 2002 home completions
were 52 (2001: 42) at an average selling
price of £287,000 (2001: £264,000).

2002

(2001 : 32,463 plots)

*before exceptional items of £1 million (2001: £nil)

Compared to 2001, operating profit fell
£20.4 million due to lower trading
development profits in the UK and
rental incomes from trading properties.
Profits are likely to remain at this
subdued level until exposure
is increased to the commercial
development sector and profits can be
recognised from the K2 development at
St Katharine’s Dock. Trading development
capital employed has increased in

Taylor Woodrow Construction has
continued its good performance
following the refocus of the business in
previous years. Key external areas for
the business remain repeat work from
blue chip customers, healthcare PFI and
facilities management. However the
fastest growing part of the business
is supporting the house building and
commercial property activities. In 2002
£82.4 million of internal work was
completed, approximately 18 per cent
of the construction business’ total
workload – up 48 per cent on last year.
In 2003 internal order book is expected
to grow to around 30 per cent as the
construction business delivers the
large complex and mixed use schemes
for the Group. Operating profit was
£11.7 million (2001: £12.2 million) and
profit before tax £21.1 million
(2001: £22.8 million).
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Operating and Financial Review 2002 continued

The construction order book, which
includes internal work, stood at £673
million at the year end – up 13 per cent
on the previous year.
Shareholders’ Funds
Total shareholders’ funds at the end of
2002 increased from £1,335.1 million
to £1,405.9 million. The implementation
of FRS 19 – Deferred Tax – brought
a prior year adjustment of £21.1 million
to the opening shareholders’ funds,
which increased to £1,356.2 million.
This new accounting standard has
not had a significant effect on the
ongoing tax charge in the profit and
loss account.
Retained profit for the year of £114.5
million was offset by a revaluation
deficit of £20.5 million on investment
properties and by £25.0 million of
currency translation differences caused
by the weakening of both the US and
Canadian Dollars over the year. There
was a further reduction in shareholders’
funds of £19.8 million as previously
revalued fixed asset properties, mainly
the Southall complex in West London,
were transferred to stock from fixed
assets since they are undergoing
redevelopment pending a future sale.
At the end of the year, £241.4 million
of goodwill remained on the balance
sheet. The Journey Homes acquisition
added £7.5 million of goodwill to the
balance sheet. The amortisation charge
for the year was £13.1 million in total
– £12.9 million relating to the Bryant
Homes acquisition and £0.2 million to
the Journey Homes acquisition.

Growth in shareholders' funds per share
(pence sterling)
245.9

254.4

231.8
195.1
168.7
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Shareholders’ Returns
Adjusted earnings per share increased
by 12.0 per cent from 26.6 pence to 29.8
pence. The proposed final dividend of
5.2 pence produces a total for the year
of 7.4 pence, an increase of 10.4 per
cent over last year, and reflects the
Board’s confidence in Taylor Woodrow’s
continuing strong profit performance.
The dividend was covered 3.8 times by
earnings – the same level as the previous
year. The share price at 31 December
2002 was 169.5 pence and trading at

a 33.4 per cent discount to shareholders’
funds per share.

The weakening of both the US dollar
and the Canadian dollar over 2002
lowered reported profit before tax by
£1.6 million and £1.2 million respectively.
Net assets also reduced by £25 million
due to the weakening of these
currencies. On 7 February 2002, the
company issued £250 million of 65/8%
Sterling Bonds 2012 at 98.913% of par.
The Bonds, which refinance the short
term bank borrowings for the Bryant
acquisition, are listed on the London
Stock Exchange.

Cash Flow
In 2002 there was a £12.3 million
increase in cash, compared to a
£37.7 million outflow in 2001.
The cash inflow from operating activities
of £147.4 million (2001: £219.0 million)
was significantly lower than operating
profit as working capital increased. Land
stocks were up by £158.3 million and
work in progress by £99.4 million. These
were partly offset by an increase in
creditors of £140.6 million.

Taxation
The effective tax rate in 2002 of
33 per cent is above the standard UK
corporation tax rate. This is attributable
to the amortisation of the Bryant
goodwill and fair value adjustments
and the blend of ordinary trading profits
from countries with tax rates higher
than the UK.

Net cash outflow from returns on
investment and servicing of finance of
£17.9 million (2001: £39.3 million) was
lower than the previous year largely
due to the timing of interest payments
in 2002.
Net cash inflow from capital expenditure
and financial investment of £61.5
million (2001: £129.0 million) was
lower than the previous year due
to a lower level of investment property
sales in 2002.

Pensions
FRS 17 – Retirement Benefits –
replaces SSAP 24 – Accounting for
Pension Costs – and will change existing
accounting and disclosure requirements
for defined benefit pension schemes.
Although transitional rules apply, when
fully implemented the principal changes
will be the inclusion of pension scheme
surpluses or deficits on the balance
sheet, analysis of components of the
pension charge between operating
profit and net interest and the reporting
of actuarial gains and losses in the
statement of total recognised gains
and losses. Disclosures required by
FRS 17 can be found in note 31 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The £29.7 million acquisition in the cash
flow statement refers to the Journey
Homes acquisition.
Net cash inflow from financing
of £32.6 million (2001: net outflow
£3.0 million) largely reflects the surplus
on refinancing existing facilities with
the bonds issued in February 2002.
Treasury Management and Funding
Net debt stood at £247.8 million
(2001: £297.6 million) equivalent to
a net gearing of 17.6 per cent (2001:
21.9 per cent). Net debt peaked at
£429 million, and averaged £366 million
during the year. This was reduced at
year end due to the timing of house
sales and land payments. Net interest
cost for the year rose slightly to
£34.7 million (2001: £33.1 million).
At the year end Taylor Woodrow had
undrawn committed facilities totalling
£305.2 million.

1999. Whilst the 2002 valuations are
not yet complete, any change to the
annual pension charge is not expected
to materially affect profit.

Average total capital employed allocation
excluding goodwill
(£m)
844.2
■ UK Housing
■ North American Housing
■ Other Housing
■ Commercial Property
■ Investment Property
■ Construction
306.7
196.4
(58.8)

94.8
26.6

The deficits reported under FRS 17
reflect the different bases of valuing
assets and liabilities compared with
SSAP 24 and include the immediate
impact of the fair value of assets at
31 December 2002. FRS 17 does not
have any impact on the basis of
funding those schemes.
The pension charge for the year was
£8.0 million (2001: £8.2 million). This
charge was related to the most recent
valuation of the pension schemes in
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Corporate Social Responsibility

...by responding

proposed redevelopment of construction’s
former headquarters complex in
Southall, Middlesex, we will invest
some £4.5 million to support the
local community through transport
and education improvements and
a Community Development Trust.

to the wider needs of our stakeholders
In 2002, we continued to develop our
overall Corporate Social Responsibility
strategy, building on the review carried
out during 2001 which benchmarked
our position against CSR best practice.
This culminated in a set of proposals,
which were endorsed by the Board.
One of the more important of these is
the bringing together of our Health and
Safety, Environment and other CSR
related activities into one group,
chaired by the Chief Executive, to take
our programme forward. To provide
further momentum to this important
aspect of our business, a CSR
Programme Manager has been
appointed to work with the senior
management team on implementation.
CSR Policies
We now have a CSR policy, supported
by a number of specific policies covering
Community, Biodiversity, Ethics, Human
Rights, Diversity and Donations. Our
existing policies on Health and Safety
and Environment have also been
reviewed.
Highlights of our activities in some
of these areas are described in the
following sections.
Health & Safety
Taylor Woodrow continually strives
to improve its health and safety
performance. We operate robust
management systems which
incorporate health and safety and
actively promote a culture of safety
within all levels of our organisation and
the supply chain. This commitment
comes from the very top of the
organisation. All of our senior
management team have attended an
Institute of Occupational Safety and

Health “Safety for Senior Executives”
course and all employees have access
to the resources they need to enable
them to achieve their personal and
company health and safety objectives.
Our achievements have been
recognised by the Movement for
Innovation (M4i) in selecting Taylor
Woodrow as a demonstration
organisation for health and safety.
We have also accepted an invitation
from the Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents (ROSPA) to
become a founder member of their
“Partners in Progress” initiative.
The Construction business was awarded
a ROSPA Gold Award for the third year
in succession and Taylor Woodrow plc,
a Silver Award for its first entry. We
were also winners of the Working Well
Together “Commitment” award, a
campaign supported by the Health and
Safety Commission.
Care for the Environment
Almost everything we do impacts in
some way on the environment and
we are committed to improving our
performance through continued research
and development into sustainable
techniques and the provision of energy
and waste efficient homes and offices.
We also take steps to ensure, wherever
possible, that we work with local
communities to lessen the impact of
our developments and improve local
facilities and environments.
An example is the way in which we
are introducing recycling as part of our
waste management strategy within
our UK housing business. During 2002
we launched a new waste management

policy, a key element of which is the
segregation of waste plasterboard
for recycling. We are working closely
with our supply chain partner to
implement this pioneering scheme.
In 2002 we returned 700 tonnes of
waste plasterboard to the manufacturer
for recycling, representing approximately
20 per cent of plasterboard waste
produced during the year.

Taylor Woodrow Group (UK)
(Accidents/Incidents) Ten year analysis
Accidents per 1000 employees
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■ TW Group (UK)
■ HSE National Average
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Our Construction business continues
to show a strong commitment to good
environmental performance through
its certification to the environmental
management standard ISO14001. At
Greenwich Millennium Village we have
achieved a Green Apple Environment
Award for waste management
practices. Taylor Woodrow Construction
is also the first contractor in the UK
to begin implementing the Building
Research Establishment’s waste
monitoring tool, SMARTstart,
throughout its activities.
Supporting the Community
Community issues are addressed at
many levels.
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Taylor Woodrow Group (UK)
Incidence Rate 12 Months to Dec 2002
Accidents per 1000 employees
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We encourage participation in the
Considerate Contractors scheme.
Two of our projects received Gold
Awards from the scheme in 2002.
Another project team participated in
“Working in the Community” a
collaborative project funded by the
DTI under its “Respect for People”
agenda, which involved developing and
implementing communication strategies.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Plasterboard recycling 2002
■ Cumulative tonnes recycled
■ Tonnes recycled in the Quarter

708.0

404.9

We work with planning authorities and
local communities to develop scheme
proposals that meet the needs of local
development plans. As part of the

We have programmes of charitable
giving from grass roots to corporate
level. In 2002, support through the
Taylor Woodrow Charity Trust was
provided to organisations such as
Macmillan Cancer Relief, Age Concern,
Homestart. A donation was also made
to the Charities Aid Foundation.

2

303.1

176.5
228.4
58.0
118.5
Q1
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At Mirasol in Palm Beach County, Florida
we have set aside 364 hectares of
land as a wetland area and provided
substantial funds towards the
construction of a water control structure
in order to protect and improve the
quality of habitat for birds and wildlife
in the local area.

Q2

Q3

In North America, each region runs its
own charitable support programme.
Amongst many initiatives, a donation
was made to the Yonge Street initiative
in Canada.
Teamwork
We strive to be an attractive company
for talented and motivated people
in which high levels of personal
and company performance will be
recognised and rewarded. Our reward
strategy considers all aspects of salary,
incentives and benefits as a total
package with the intention of providing
competitive levels of renumeration
and enhanced earning opportunities in
recognition of business success.
We believe in determining remuneration
levels from appropriate “pay market”
information with an emphasis upon
fairly rewarding high levels of personal
performance. We are setting in place
initiatives for ensuring an effective
working environment, efficient
working arrangements, creating
personal development opportunities
and promoting a challenging and
fulfilling working life.

Consultation teams made up of staff
from all businesses, nominated by
their colleagues, meet on a quarterly
basis to discuss recent and future
developments within the company
and then report to the Executive
Committee. This process is designed
to encourage our people to contribute
to decisions affecting the company,
their teams and themselves.
We value diversity. Equality of
opportunity is an integral principle of
the company. Each employee has an
obligation to colleagues, customers
and business partners to ensure a
safe and fair working environment in
which individuals can seek, obtain
and continue employment without
experiencing discrimination on
grounds of gender, age, marital
status, ethnic background, disability
or religious belief.
Communications
Our staff worldwide receive regular
communication to ensure they are fully
up to speed with developments in
Taylor Woodrow. Members of our top
management team also regularly visit
our offices to hold informal meetings
where staff are invited to ask questions
on any topic of their choice.
Forward Programme
During 2003 we intend to further
develop our organisation to support
CSR by setting up a network of
CSR champions within the business.
They will assist with the development
and implementation of our CSR
programme and the progressive
integration of CSR into the management
framework. As part of our programme
we will continue to develop initiatives
which reduce our environmental impacts
since this benefits not only the
environment, but also results in
cost savings.
In continuing to respond to the wider
needs of our stakeholders we are
developing our first detailed report
on CSR issues and this will be
made available via our website,
taylorwoodrow.com.

Q4
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Board of Directors

…through a sharper focus

Dr Robert Hawley *‡

Iain Napier‡

Peter Johnson

Denis Mac Daid

Norman Broadhurst*‡

Sir George Russell*‡

Lady Robin Innes Ker*‡

Andrew Dougal*‡

CBE, DSc, FRSE, FREng,
CEng, FIEE, FIMechE, FInstP

ACMA

BA, ACA

FCA, FCT

CBE

MA, DPhil

BAcc, CA

Chief Executive

Finance Director

Eur Ing, BSc, CEng, FICE,
FIEI, FRSA

Deputy Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Appointed a Director in 2000
and Deputy Chairman in
March 2003. He chairs the
audit committee and is a
member of the remuneration
and nomination committees.
He is also Chairman of Team
Nominees Limited, the
corporate trustee of the
Taylor Woodrow Group
Pension and Life Assurance
Fund. He is Chairman of
Chloride Group plc and
Freightliner Limited and a
director of Cattles plc, Old
Mutual plc, Tomkins plc and
United Utilities plc.
Age 61.

Appointed a Director in 1992.
He is the senior independent
Director. He chairs the
remuneration committee
and is a member of the audit
and nomination committees.
He was Deputy Chairman
until March 2003. He is
Deputy Chairman of Granada
plc and a director of Northern
Rock plc. He was previously
Chairman of 3i Group plc
and Camelot Group plc.
Age 67.

Appointed a Director in 2001.
Lady Innes Ker is a member
of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees.
Previously a Non-Executive
Director of Bryant Group plc,
her other directorships
include Fibernet Group plc,
The Television Corporation
plc and Williams Lea plc.
Age 42.

Appointed a Director on
18 November 2002. He is
a member of the audit,
remuneration and nomination
committees. He spent the
last sixteen years with
Hanson, including a number
of years with ARC, its
building materials subsidiary.
He was finance director of
Hanson plc from 1995 to
1997 and Chief Executive
from 1997 to 2002.
Age 51.

Chairman. Non-Executive
Director
Appointed a Director in 1998.
Became Chairman in June
1999. He is a member of the
audit and remuneration
committees and chairs the
nomination committee. He
is also an advisor to HSBC
Investment Bank plc. His
other directorships include
Colt Telecom Group plc and
Rutland Trust plc.
Dr Hawley will retire from the
board on 29 May 2003.
Age 66.

*Member
‡Member

Executive Director

Appointed a Director on
10 January 2002 and Chief
Executive on 1 February 2002.
He chairs the executive
committee and is a member
of the nomination committee.
He is a non-executive director
of Imperial Tobacco Group
plc. Formerly Chief Executive
of Bass Brewers, a director
of Bass plc and a member of
the Executive Management
Committee of Interbrew SA.
Age 53.

of the audit and remuneration committees
of the nomination committee
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Appointed a Director and
Finance Director on
18 November 2002. He
has a background in financial
services and property
investment in the UK and
North America. He was
formerly Group Finance
Director of Henderson plc
and of Norwich Union Life
and Chief Financial Officer
of Pearl Assurance.
Age 48

Appointed a Director in 2001.
He is Operations Director
(South) of Taylor Woodrow
Developments Limited,
the main UK housing and
development subsidiary.
He was previously Chief
Executive of Bryant Homes
Limited and before that
Managing Director of
Taylor Woodrow Construction
Limited and has wide
experience of the industry,
gained during a 37 year
career with the Group.
Age 58.

and new ideas
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Report of the Directors

Report of the Directors continued

to the members for the year ended 31 December 2002

Review of activities and future developments
A detailed review of the company’s activities, the development of
its businesses, and an indication of likely future developments,
is contained in the Chief Executive’s Review, “This is Taylor
Woodrow” and the Operating and Financial Review on pages
4 to 23.
Results and dividends
The Group’s profit for the financial year before taxation on
ordinary activities was £233.1 million. The profit after taxation
and minority interests was £155.1 million.
The company paid an interim dividend for the year of 2.2p per
share on 1 November 2002 (2001: 2p). The directors have
recommended a final dividend of 5.2p per share for 2002
(2001: 4.7p) which, subject to confirmation at the Annual
General Meeting, will be paid on 1 July 2003 to members
on the register on 30 May 2003. The company operates a
Dividend Re-investment Plan, details of which are set out
in full in the Annual General Meeting circular.
Directors
The directors of the company at the date of this report are
shown on pages 26 to 27. Keith Egerton retired from the
board on 1 February 2002 and Adrian Auer resigned on
11 October 2002. Peter Johnson was appointed as finance
director and Andrew Dougal as a non-executive director on
18 November 2002.
Retirement and re-election of directors
Norman Broadhurst, Sir George Russell, Andrew Dougal and
Peter Johnson will retire at the Annual General Meeting in
accordance with the company’s articles of association. All four
directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
Sir George Russell has been a director of the company since
1992 and was last re-elected to the board in 2002.
Auditors
Deloitte & Touche have confirmed their willingness to continue
in office as auditors of the company and a resolution to re-appoint
them will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
Deloitte & Touche also provide non-audit services to the
Group under arrangements which are described on page 30
– Corporate Governance.
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to the members for the year ended 31 December 2002

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at 11.30 a.m. on
Wednesday 7 May 2003 at The Institution of Electrical Engineers,
Savoy Place, London, WC2R 0BL. Formal notice and details of
the meeting are set out in the Annual General Meeting circular.
Registered office
On 2 December 2002 the company’s Registered Office was
changed to 2 Princes Way, Solihull, West Midlands B91 3ES.
Registrar
On 23 December 2002 the company appointed Capita
Registrars as its Registrar. Contact details for Capita are
set out in Shareholder information on page 68.
Share capital
Details of the share capital are shown in Note 24 to the financial
statements. The following persons have notified the company
of their interests in the ordinary share capital under section
198 Companies Act 1985:
Number of
shares held
(millions)

Percentage
of issued
share capital

Beneficial interests
AXA SA

27.5

4.98

Legal and General Investment
Management Limited

22.2

4.01

Standard Life Group

22.2

4.01

Aviva plc & Morley Fund
Management Limited

17.2

3.12

Non-beneficial interest
Schroder Investment Management
Limited & Schroders plc

55.8

10.11

Name

At 4 March 2003 no change in these holdings had been
notified nor, according to the register of members, did any
other shareholder at that date have a disclosable holding of
the issued capital.
Corporate social responsibility
Taylor Woodrow places great emphasis on its role as a good
corporate citizen. A detailed statement of the Group’s policies
and practices on corporate social responsibility appears on
pages 24 to 25.

Research and development
The company recognises the importance of investing in research
and development and carries out a wide-ranging programme
across its businesses. During 2002, this included improving the
energy efficiency of our homes and reducing the environmental
impact of our developments; developing a range of house
and apartment designs that can achieve ecohome ratings from
good to excellent; evaluating the upgrading of home electrical
wiring designs to facilitate smart home appliances and systems,
and undertaking trials of a new approach to post-occupation
homecare. We are also further developing 3D project modelling
to improve design management, project delivery and facilities
management, and working with Ove Arup and Partners and
Peabody Trust to develop an advanced system for processing
quality homes offsite.
Charitable donations
The company is strongly committed to the supporting of
charitable and community projects. During the year Group
companies donated £234,000 to various charities in the UK
and North America, £131,000 in the UK and £103,000 in
North America. An outline of the Group’s programme of
charitable giving appears on pages 24 to 25 – Corporate
Social Responsibility.

Corporate governance
Detailed statements of the company’s corporate governance
principles and the Group’s systems of internal control are set
out on pages 30 to 31 – Corporate governance.
Important events since the year end
Except for any matters referred to elsewhere in this annual
report and accounts, there have been no other important events
affecting the company or any of its subsidiary undertakings
since the end of the financial year.
This report of the directors was approved by the board of
directors on 4 March 2003.

Richard I Morbey
Secretary
4 March 2003

Political donations
The company did not make any donations to political parties
during 2002. Subscriptions totalling £145,000 were paid to the
House Builders’ Federation and the Scottish House Builders’
Federation, which are active in supporting the interests of the
house building sector. These payments might be considered to
be “EU Political Expenditure” as defined by Part XA of the
Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the Political Parties,
Elections and Referendums Act 2000). At the 2002 Annual
General Meeting shareholders consented to such donations.
Policy on payment of suppliers
Because of the nature of the Group’s operations there is no
single Group standard in respect of payment terms to suppliers.
Generally, subsidiaries are responsible for establishing payment
terms with suppliers when entering into each transaction or
series of linked transactions. In the absence of dispute, valid
payment requests are met as expeditiously as possible within
such terms. This policy continues to apply in 2003. Trade
creditor days for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2002 were 51 days, based on the ratio of year end Group trade
creditors (excluding subcontract retentions and unagreed
claims of £12.6 million) to amounts invoiced during the year by
trade creditors. The company had no significant trade creditors
at 31 December 2002.
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The Financial Services Authority Combined Code
Taylor Woodrow plc is committed to the principles of good
corporate governance and maintains good corporate
governance procedures, recognising the part they can play
in contributing to enhanced benefits for shareholders.

The Audit Committee consists entirely of non-executive directors
and is chaired by Norman Broadhurst. The chief executive,
finance director, head of group business process review & audit
department, representatives of the external auditors, and senior
executives of major Group companies attend whenever required.

Throughout the accounting period to 31 December 2002, the
company has been in compliance with the provisions set out
in Section 1 of the Financial Services Authority Combined Code
on Corporate Governance.

The committee met six times during 2002. It has clearly-defined
terms of reference which outline its objectives and responsibilities
and a programme of activities to support the discharge of those
responsibilities. The terms of reference are reviewed annually.

The board
The board consists of eight directors whose names appear on
pages 26 to 27. Three of the directors are executive. Five of the
directors are non-executive. The Chairman, Dr Hawley, will
retire from the board on 29 May 2003, at the expiry of his
contract with the company. Sir George Russell stepped down
as Deputy Chairman on 4 March 2003 and was succeeded on
that date by Norman Broadhurst.

The committee reviews the internal control framework, the
internal audit process, the financial reporting practices and the
external audit process.

The board has reviewed the status of all of the non-executive
directors, each of whom, together with the board, has
confirmed that they are to be regarded as independent.
The board has specifically confirmed that Sir George Russell,
who has served as a director for ten years, should continue
as the senior independent director for a period of up to one
year and he will lead the search and selection process for a
new Chairman, which has commenced. Sir George's wide
external experience and interests, combined with his deep
insight into Taylor Woodrow's business will ensure continuity of
non-executive representation on the board during this transition.
The board met 10 times during 2002. It has adopted formal
schedules of matters which are specifically reserved to it for
decision and a framework of delegated authorities which
define the scope of the Chief Executive’s powers and those
of subsidiary management. There are procedures for directors
(including the non-executive directors) to receive induction,
training and continuing familiarisation about the company’s
businesses and the Group's business operations and systems.
The appointment of directors follows a process in which the
whole board is involved. The appointment of non-executive
directors is for a specified term and re-appointment is not
automatic. In the three years up to and including the 2003
Annual General Meeting each director will have submitted
himself for re-election at least once.
All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary and the board has established a procedure
whereby directors, wishing to do so in the furtherance of their
duties, may take independent professional advice at the
company's expense.
Board committees
The board has established the following committees:
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In monitoring the financial reporting practices the committee
reviews accounting policies, areas of judgement, the going
concern assumption and compliance with accounting standards
and the requirements of the Financial Services Authority.
The committee also reviews, prior to publication, the interim
and annual financial statements and other major statements
affecting the Group concerning price-sensitive information.
The committee has approved a policy on employing the
auditors to provide services other than audit services, which
is to require a competitive tender except in narrowly-defined
circumstances where the company considers that for
confidentiality, past knowledge or other reasons, there is an
advantage in using a single tender procurement procedure.
The Remuneration Committee
The operation of the Remuneration Committee and the
company’s policies and procedures on remuneration matters are
set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 32 to 39.
The Nomination Committee consists of the non-executive
directors and the chief executive. It is chaired by Dr Robert
Hawley. It makes recommendations to the board on the
appointment of directors and reviews succession planning
and related matters. The Committee met once in 2002.
The Executive Committee is chaired by the chief executive
and comprises all the executive directors of the company and
senior executives of major Group companies. It reviews the
financial and operational performance of all Group companies
and divisions, and key issues relating to human resources,
communications and legal matters. The committee also monitors
and oversees the day to day control of risk within the Group’s
operations. Further details are described in Internal control below.
The investment sub-committee reviews all major investment
proposals affecting the Group’s business.
Proposals involving major commitments which exceed the
Chief Executive’s limit of authority and matters of strategic
significance require main board approval.

Other Group committees
The Group has also established committees to co-ordinate
initiatives in the areas of health, safety, environmental matters
and corporate social responsibility.

There is a clearly identifiable organisational structure and a
framework of delegated authority approved by the board within
which individual responsibilities of senior executives of Group
companies are identified and can be monitored.

Internal control
The board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The annual employee performance appraisal process is
objective-based, with individual objectives cascaded down from
the appropriate business objectives. Development reviews
identify training needs to support achievement of objectives.

There is an ongoing process for identifying and managing the
Group’s significant risks. This process is regularly reviewed by
the board and accords with the internal control guidance for
directors on the Combined Code. The board confirms that this
process was in place throughout the year under review and up
to the date of its approval of the annual report and accounts.
A Group-level review is carried out by the members of the
executive committee to identify the major risks facing the
Group and to develop and implement appropriate initiatives
to manage those risks. This process applies across the Group.
During the business planning process, risk reviews are carried out
in each of the operating divisions to identify business risk, evaluate
existing controls and develop strategies to manage the risks that
remain. These reviews are updated throughout the year. As part
of the chief executive’s quarterly business performance reviews,
assessment is made of the progress against objectives, changes
to operational risk, and adequacy of control.
The chief executive has responsibility for preparing and reviewing
a three-year corporate plan and the annual budgets. These are
subject to formal approval by the board. Budgets are re-examined
in comparison with business forecasts throughout the year to
ensure they are sufficiently robust to reflect the possible impact
of changing economic circumstances. The chief executive and
the board conduct regular and systematic reviews of actual
results and future projections with comparison against budget
and prior year, together with various treasury reports. Disputes
that may give rise to significant litigation or contractual claims are
monitored monthly.
The Group has clearly defined policies and procedures governing
its investment in land, property and other significant assets,
and for acquisitions and disposals. These include detailed
appraisal requirements, defined authorisation levels and
post-investment review procedures.
Investment decisions, including Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
projects, and tenders for contracts are subject to approval by the
board, the chief executive or subsidiary operating management,
depending on the value and nature of the investment or contract.
Internal controls are set out in procedures manuals. These
include Group standards and policies for key control activities.

The group business process review & audit function reviews
the effectiveness and efficiency of the systems of internal
control in place to safeguard the assets, to price, transfer,
avoid or mitigate risks and to monitor the activities of the
Group in accomplishing established objectives. Regular reports
from these reviews are provided to the board and reported to
the chief executive, audit committee and management, who
consider them on a regular basis. The head of the Group’s
business process review & audit function has direct access to
the chairman of the audit committee.
Throughout the year the board continually considers the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. In February
2003 it completed the annual assessment for the year to 31
December 2002 by considering presentations and supporting
documentation from the operating divisions, the Group business
process review & audit department and the external auditors,
and by taking account of events since 31 December 2002.
Investor relations
The board operates a structured programme of investor relations,
based on formal announcements and publications covering the
full year and interim results. There are associated briefings for
stockbroking analysts for which the presentation material is
published on the company’s website. The company also
maintains a dialogue with institutional and other shareholders
in order to establish a mutual understanding of objectives.
The Annual General Meeting is used as a valuable opportunity for
private and other shareholders to meet and communicate with
the board to develop a better understanding of the company’s
operations and prospects. Typically, a director or senior executive
of the company gives a formal presentation to shareholders at
the meeting, commenting on an aspect of the business.
Information about the company and the Group, including full
year and interim results and other major announcements, is
published on the company’s website taylorwoodrow.com.
Going concern
After making enquiries, the directors have formed a judgement,
at the time of approving the accounts, that there is a reasonable
expectation that the Group and the company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, the directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
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Introduction
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, which introduced
new statutory requirements for the disclosure of directors’
remuneration in respect of periods ending on or after 31
December 2002.
The report also meets the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how
the board has applied the principles of good governance
relating to directors’ remuneration. As required by the
Regulations, a resolution to approve the report will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the company
on 7 May 2003 at which the financial statements will be laid
before the shareholders.
Remuneration Committee
The Board, whilst ultimately responsible for the framework
and approval of executive remuneration, has delegated
responsibility for determining the remuneration levels and
conditions of service of Executive Directors of the company
and senior executives of the Group to the Remuneration
Committee.
The Committee is constituted in accordance with the
recommendations of the Combined Code. The members of
the Committee are all independent non-executive directors.
All members of the Committee who held office during the
year are named below and, other than Mr Dougal, all served
throughout the year:
Sir George Russell (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr Norman Broadhurst
Mr Andrew Dougal (appointed 18 November 2002)
Dr Robert Hawley
Lady Innes Ker
The Committee met six times during 2002 to deal with its
normal business. The Chief Executive attends meetings by
invitation to discuss senior executive remuneration issues,
but does not otherwise participate in the Committee’s
proceedings and has no vote.
None of the Committee members has any personal
financial interest in the matters to be decided (other than
as shareholders), nor any conflicts of interest arising from
cross-directorships or day-to-day involvement in running the
business. No director plays a part in any discussion about
his or her own remuneration.
Advice
Details of those who advised the Committee or provided data
during the year on which the Committee placed reliance were:
Towers Perrin, New Bridge Street Consultants and the
company’s director of Human Resources, Alec Luhaste.
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Towers Perrin also advise the company on executive pay and
practices. New Bridge Street Consultants advise the company
on share-based reward.
Policy on executive directors’ and senior
executives’ remuneration
The board’s policy is that remuneration paid within the
business should be effective in attracting and retaining high
quality directors and executives, and in motivating them to
achieve a high level of corporate performance in line with
the best interests of shareholders.
There are five main elements of the remuneration package
for executive directors:
■ Basic annual salary and benefits;
■ Annual bonus payments;
■ Cash bonus deferral plan for shares;
■ Share option incentives; and
■ Pension arrangements.
The remuneration of the executive directors and of senior
executives consists of fixed pay and variable pay. It is the
Committee's policy that a significant proportion of total
remuneration is delivered through variable pay with payment
dependent on the achievement of stretch performance
targets set by the Committee. Total remuneration is aligned
with performance against a range of corporate financial,
operational and personal targets.
Basic salary
Basic salary is determined by the Committee annually and when
an individual changes position or responsibility by reference to
individual responsibilities, performance and external market
data including industry-specific information. Salary levels reflect
the experience, responsibility, effectiveness and market value
of the executive and generally are set between market median
and upper quartile for strong performance.
In addition to basic salary, the executive directors receive certain
benefits in kind, typically provision of a car, or an allowance in
lieu, and private medical insurance. With effect from 1 January
2003, executive directors and all UK salaried employees have
been provided with the benefit of an Income Protection Plan,
which provides cover if individuals are unable to continue to
work due to prolonged periods of ill health or disability.
Basic salaries were reviewed in March 2002 with increases
taking effect from 1 April 2002.
During late 2002, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
reward structure for the business. A new framework was
introduced with effect from January 2003, based on a guiding
reward philosophy whereby pay will increasingly be linked to
performance. The review of basic salaries which was carried
out in February 2003 and the bonus targets applicable to 2003
reflect the new reward structure.

Annual bonus payments
The maximum potential bonus of executive directors is 50%
of basic salary, subject to review by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time. The Committee establishes
the objectives that must be met for each financial year if a
bonus is to be paid.
For the financial year 2002 these objectives were achievement
of targeted levels of group profit before tax. In addition, the
executive directors and members of the executive committee
were set further targets, which included:
the development and agreement of plans to reduce the
group’s on-going annual cost base;
■ evidencing of improvements in the customer focus of our
businesses; and
■ the implementation of health and safety improvement plans
for all the businesses.
■

Each executive director and senior executive was also assigned
additional personal business objectives, which were agreed
with the Chief Executive and in the case of the Chief Executive,
by the Chairman.
For 2003, the following objectives have been assigned :
achievement of targeted levels of profit before tax
achievement of specified group safety matrix ratings
■ achievement of specified ratings on the customer
satisfaction index
■ personal business objectives which are specific to the
director’s area of responsibility
■
■

Objectives also require provision to be made for the longer
term direction and growth of the business.
For the year ended 31 December 2002 awards were made
varying between 44% and 49% of basic salary. All bonuses
are payable in cash and taxable at source. There is the
opportunity for the Executive Directors and 36 senior
executives voluntarily to participate in a Cash Bonus
Deferral Plan by investing a sum up to their net after-tax
bonus in the purchase of shares in the company, with the
additional possibility of investing a further sum equivalent
to the income tax paid on the bonus. If these shares
remain undrawn for three years, they will be matched by
the company on a one for one basis. In view of the
demanding targets which apply to bonus awards, no
additional performance criteria apply to the matching awards.
Bonus awards for 2002 and the prior two years were paid in
cash. In the case of Denis Mac Daid, awards made for the
years 1998 and 1999 were satisfied partly by the issue of
options at ‘nil’ exercise price in lieu of cash. Details of the
remaining options appear in the table showing details of
options for directors who served during the year on page 37.

Directors’ bonuses and benefits in kind are not pensionable.
The company does not currently operate any Long Term
Incentive Schemes.
Share options
Executive Share Option Plan
The company operates an Executive Share Option Plan, which
was approved by shareholders on 7 June 1996. The Committee
has responsibility for supervising the Plan and for the granting
of options under its terms.
It is the company’s policy to award discretionary executive
share options as part of the overall reward and benefit
arrangements. The Committee has currently applied a limit to
the maximum value of options that may be awarded to any
individual, which is six times basic salary, and is currently
applied in special cases, such as following the recruitment of a
key director or senior executive. Generally, options are satisfied
by the sale of shares obtained by purchases made on the
market. In respect of options which are to be satisfied by the
allotment of new issued share capital, the maximum value of
options that may be awarded to any individual is four times
basic salary.
Except in special cases, executive options are normally granted
on a phased basis, with annual awards ranging from 0.5 times
to 1.5 times basic salary, depending on seniority. Executive
options are granted subject to a performance criterion, which
applies to all participants. This requires that options may only
be exercised if growth in the company’s earnings per share
exceeds a specified measure. Earnings per share growth has
been selected, as it is considered to be an appropriate indicator
of management’s success in advancing the performance of
the business.
For executive options granted prior to 2000, the measure
required that earnings per share should be 6 per cent
above the growth in the Retail Prices Index measured over
the three year period immediately preceding the year in
which the option first becomes exercisable. In 2001 the
Remuneration Committee increased the measure to 9 per
cent and during 2002 it further increased it to 12 per cent.
in respect of awards which cause aggregate option values,
measured at the time of grant, to exceed three times basic
salary and to 15 per cent for awards which cause aggregate
options to exceed four times basic salary. The performance
measures under the share option plan were modified as so
detailed so as to ensure that reward was commensurate
with increasingly stretching performance targets, in line
with the Group reward philosophy.
In all cases, if the earnings test is not satisfied at the first
opportunity, it is successively repeated annually until the test
is satisfied or the option lapses. Once the test is satisfied, the
option may be exercised during the remainder of its life
without further tests.
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Earnings per share is calculated in accordance with FRS 14 and
the Retail Prices Index is taken from data published by Incomes
Data Services.

the amount of employer’s National Insurance contributions
thereon. Mr Napier and Mr Johnson will each contribute 5%
of basic salary, subject to the “cap”.

Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
The Group operates a Savings-Related Share Option
Scheme in which all employees working in the UK are
eligible to participate if they have worked for the Group for
three months or more. Generally, options awarded under
this Scheme are priced at a discount of 20% below the
market price of the company’s shares at the commencement
of any offer period.

Pensions of former directors
Keith Egerton, who retired as Chief Executive during 2002,
was entitled to receive basic pension benefits and enhanced
pension benefits. The entire costs of providing these benefits
were accounted for and disclosed in prior years and were
funded during 2002 by contributions to the Main and
Supplemental Pension Fund totalling £984,000 together with
employer’s National Insurance contributions of £115,000.

Directors’ interests in shares and options
Details of all options granted to and exercised by executive
directors during 2002 appear in the Directors’ interests in
shares of the company on page 37. Details of options held at
31 December 2002 appear in the table on page 37.

Adrian Auer, who resigned from the board on 11 October
2002, participated in the defined benefit scheme. The company
agreed to provide pension augmentation for the period from
1 November 2002 up to 31 January 2003.

Except as noted in this section, no significant amendments are
currently proposed to be made to the terms and conditions of
any entitlement of a director to share options.
Pensions
Details of the Group’s principal UK pension schemes are given
in note 31 to the financial statements. All members of those
schemes are entitled to payment of a lump sum in the event
of death in service. Dependants of members of the defined
benefit schemes are eligible for dependants’ pensions.
Of the executive directors, Denis Mac Daid participates in
the Taylor Woodrow Group Pension and Life Assurance
Fund, which provides defined benefits of 2 per cent of final
pensionable salary for each year of pensionable service. This
defined benefit scheme was closed to new entrants from
31 March 2002.

Performance graph
The following graph shows the company’s performance,
measured by total shareholder return, compared with the
performance of the FTSE 250 share index also measured by total
shareholder return. The FTSE 250 index has been selected for
this comparison as the company is a constituent of that index.

With effect from 1 April 2002 the company introduced the
Taylor Woodrow Personal Choice Plan, a defined contribution
Pension Scheme which all new eligible UK employees are
invited to join.
At 31 December 2002 none of the other executive directors
was a member of either of these schemes. Messrs Napier
and Johnson became members of the defined contribution
scheme on 25 January 2003 and 25 February 2003 respectively.
The company will contribute to the Plan 38% and 34.5%
respectively of their basic salary, of which an amount up to the
Inland Revenue “cap” will be applied to the scheme and the
balance paid as an additional allowance, this being reduced by
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Unexpired
term
Notice
(months)
periods

Name

Date of
contract

Iain Napier

10/01/2002 12

Peter Johnson

01/11/2002 12

Denis Mac Daid

03/08/2001 12

Consolidated
and restated
10/01/2001

£
150

Adrian Auer

07/08/2000 N/A

140

Resigned
10/10/2002

Growth in value of a hypothetical £100 holding over
five years. FTSE 250 comparison based on spot values.

120

12 months
60
by company:

12 months
62
by company:
6 months
by director:

Retired
01/02/2002

130

12 months
60
by company:

12 months
by director:

02/03/1992 N/A

Taylor Woodrow plc.
Historical Total Shareholder Return.

Normal
retirement
age

12 months
by director:

Keith Egerton

12 months
62
by company: 24/6/02

annual general meeting and at the place of the meeting 15
minutes prior to and until the close of the meeting.
Non-executive directors
All non-executive directors have specific letters of engagement.
Their remuneration is determined by the board and based on
independent surveys by Monks Partnership and Egon Zehnder
of fees paid to non-executive directors of similar companies.
The Chairman is remunerated for his services to the company,
which requires him to devote the equivalent of two days per
week to the business. Until 15 July 2002 he was provided with
the use of company accommodation. He is also entitled to the
use of a car provided by the company. The other non-executive
directors receive fees within the limits set by the Articles
of Association.
The Chairman receives basic remuneration of £195,000.
The basic fee of the other non-executive directors is £30,000
p.a. in addition to which they receive further fees as follows:
Deputy Chairmanship

£30,000

Membership of committees

£2,500 p.a. per committee

Chairmanship of committee

Additional £2,500 p.a.

Chairmanship of pension trustee board
12 months
by director:
12 months
62
by company:

£10,000

Non-executive directors do not participate in any of the
company’s share option schemes and are not eligible to join
the company’s pension schemes.

6 months
by director:

110
100
90

Details of the accrued pension entitlements under this Pension
Fund of executive directors who held office during 2002 and
the opening and closing transfer values of their accrued
pension rights are shown in the tables of directors’ pension
entitlements on page 38.

Details of the contracts of employment of executive
directors who held office during the year are summarised
below. In no case do they contain notice entitlements
exceeding one year.

■ Taylor Woodrow plc
■ FTSE 250

80
70
1/1/98

31/12/98

31/12/99

29/12/00

31/12/01

31/12/02

The graph has been prepared from information obtained
through Datastream. It shows the theoretical growth in the
value of a shareholding over the specified period, assuming
that dividends are re-invested to purchase additional units of
equity at the closing price applicable on the ex-dividend date.
Historical data is based on the constituent companies at each
given date.
Directors’ contracts
Directors’ service contracts
It is the company’s policy that executive directors should have
contracts with a rolling term, providing for a maximum of one
year’s notice. However, it may be necessary occasionally to
offer longer notice periods to new directors.

It is the company’s policy that liquidated damages should not
apply on the termination of an executive director’s contract.
In line with this policy, payment for early termination (without
cause) by the company is, in the case of each of the executive
directors, to be determined by reference to normal principles
of English Law, which requires mitigation of liability on a case
by case basis.
Mr Johnson, who is proposed for re-election at the next
Annual General Meeting, has a service contract which
provides for a notice period of one year. Mr Norman
Broadhurst, Sir George Russell, and Mr Andrew Dougal,
who are also proposed for re-election, being non-executive
directors, do not have service contracts.
Executive directors’ contracts of service, which include details
of remuneration, will be available for inspection at the
company’s registered office during usual business hours on
any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted)
between 4 April 2003 and up to and including the date of the
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AUDITED INFORMATION
Name of director

Directors’ emoluments
Basic
salary/fees
£000

Name of director

Salary
supplement in
lieu of pension
£000

Annual
bonuses
£000

Benefits in
kind*
£000

2002
£000

2001
£000

Executive directors
Iain Napier
Peter Johnson†
Denis Mac Daid
Keith Egerton
Adrian Auer
Paul Phipps

415
34
239
19
200
–

104
8
–
11
31
–

203
–
110
–
91
–

16
1
17
2
14
–

738
43
366
32
336
–

–
–
181
560
348
175

Non-executive directors
Dr Robert Hawley
Sir George Russell
Norman Broadhurst
Lady Robin Innes Ker
Andrew Dougal
Sir Colin Corness

171
65
49
36
5
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

17
–
–
–
–
–

188
65
49
36
5
–

179
50
36
16
–
14

1,233

154

404

67

1,858

–

966

173

368

52

–

1,559

84
–

–
586

Aggregate emoluments
2001:

Payments made to Adrian Auer following cessation of employment:
Contractual compensation paid to Paul Phipps following cessation of employment:

Notes on remuneration
Johnson’s basic salary is £280,000 p.a.
*Benefits in kind includes provision of company car or allowance in lieu, private medical insurance and, for the chairman,
accommodation for part of the year.
†Peter

Payments to former directors
Keith Egerton ceased to be a director and Chief Executive on 1 February 2002 but remained an employee of the company until his
normal retirement date of 24 June 2002. During that period the company continued to pay him a basic salary which, for the period,
aggregated £139,762.
Adrian Auer resigned as Finance Director by mutual consent on 11 October 2002 in consequence of the company’s decision to
relocate its central offices from Staines, Middlesex to Solihull in the West Midlands. Mr. Auer’s contract contained provision for
12 months’ notice of termination of his contract. The company agreed with Mr. Auer that it would continue to pay his basic salary
and pro rata benefits, including pension augmentation, monthly for a maximum period of six months up to 30 April 2003, or a
shorter period until Mr. Auer commenced alternative employment. The final payment was made for the month ending 31 January
2003 and the total costs including pension augmentation costs, were £90,000. The company also agreed to pay Mr. Auer a bonus,
the amount of which is shown above, in respect of his services for the part of the year up to the date of his resignation, but
based on previously-agreed targets for the year.
Directors’ share options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the
company granted to or held by the directors. Details of the options exercised during the year (or up to the date of cessation,
if earlier) are as follows:
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Denis Mac Daid
Keith Egerton

Plan

Number of shares
under option

Exercise price
(pence)

Market price at
exercise date
(pence)

Gains on
exercise 2002
£

Gains on
exercise 2001
£

Executive bonus plan
Executive option

3,847
25,000

0
117.4

197
184

7,578
16,650

0
91,000

23,228

91,000

Details of options for directors who served during the year are as follows:

Name of director

Iain Napier

Plan

1 January
2002 or date
of appointment

Executive option
Executive option
SAYE
Peter Johnson Executive option
Denis Mac Daid Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Bonus Plan:
Deferred and
qualifying awards
Matching award Ω
SAYE
SAYE
Keith Egerton† Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Executive option
Bonus Plan:
Deferred and
qualifying awards
Bonus Plan: Matching awardΩ
Bonus Plan: Deferred award
Bonus Plan: Qualifying award
Bonus Plan: Matching awardΩ
SAYE
Adrian Auer†
Executive option
Executive option

Granted
(Number)

Exercised
(Number)

31 December
2002 or date
of cessation

1,193,819
236,111
6,350
295,857
–
–
–
–
208,333
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
2,565

1,193,819
236,111
6,350
295,857
40,000
15,000
60,000
130,000
208,333
10,646

6,605
5,307
7,601
25,000
49,585
415
39,578
250,000
100,000
24,870

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

1,282
–
–
25,000
–
–
–
–
–
–

5,323
5,307
7,601
0∆
49,585∆
415∆
39,578∆
250,000∆
100,000∆
24,870∆

–
130
133.2
117.4
156.5
156.5
189.5
157
160.5
–

12,435
30,228
15,209
5,493
2,909
130,000
130,000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

12,435∆
30,228∆
15,209∆
5,493∆
2,909∆
130,000∆
130,000∆

– 17.3.2002 24.6.2003
– 28.3.2002 24.6.2003
– 28.3.2000 24.6.2003
– 25.6.2002 24.6.2003
133.2 25.6.2002 24.12.2002
153 11.10.2002 16.4.2004
170 11.10.2002 19.6.2005

–*
–*
–*
–*
40,000
15,000
60,000
130,000
–
13,211

Exercise
price
(pence)

Date from
which
exercisable

Expiry date

178 10.1.2005
9.1.2012
180 9.10.2005 8.10.2012
148.8 1.12.2005 31.5.2006
169 9.12.2005 8.12.2012
156.5 7.11.1999 6.11.2006
181 29.3.2002 28.3.2009
153 17.10.2003 16.10.2010
170 20.12.2004 19.12.2011
180 9.10.2005 8.10.2012
– 28.3.2000 27.3.2010

28.3.2003
1.12.2003
1.12.2004
10.10.1997
7.11.1999
14.11.1999
28.10.2000
20.11.2001
24.6.2002
17.3.1999

27.3.2010
31.5.2004
31.5.2005
16.1.2002
20.3.2002
20.3.2002
24.6.2003
24.6.2003
24.6.2003
24.6.2003

*on appointment
∆at cessation
†Options held by these former directors remain exercisable during the period following cessation of employment until the dates indicated
ΩThe entitlement is to receive matching shares on the basis of one free share for every two shares held under a qualifying award, provided that

the option to receive the qualifying shares remains unexercised for a minimum period of three years. Keith Egerton retired on 24 June 2002
before completing the full three year holding period, and in accordance with the Plan rules, his entitlement to receive free matching shares has
been reduced pro-rata.

There have been no variations to the terms and conditions or performance criteria for share options during the financial year.
The performance conditions relating to executive options are stated on page 33.
The market price of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2002 was 169.5p and the range during the year was 143p to 219.5p.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ interests in shares of the company and its subsidiary undertakings
Taylor Woodrow plc 25p Ordinary Shares.
SHARES HELD (FULLY PAID)
At 01.01.02

Dr Robert Hawley
Iain Napier
Norman Broadhurst
Lady Robin Innes Ker†
Denis Mac Daid
Sir George Russell
Andrew Dougal
Peter Johnson

13,163
0
1,009
0
71,453
11,713
5,000*
0*

At 31.12.02

13,656
19,000
1,009
0
75,300
12,152
5,000
16,129

Notes:
1. The pension entitlement is that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year or date
of retirement or leaving if earlier and on pensionable salary at the year end or date of leaving, or retirement, if earlier.
2. The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with GN11 less any directors’
contributions. The transfer value does not represent a sum paid or payable to the individual director. Instead it represents
a potential liability of the Taylor Woodrow Group Pension and Life Assurance Fund and/or supplementary arrangements.
Members of the fund have the option to pay additional voluntary contributions; neither the contributions nor the resulting
benefits are included in the above total.
3. Keith Egerton left service on 24 June 2002.
4. Adrian Auer left service on 11 October 2002.
Members of the scheme have the option to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions; neither the contributions nor the resulting
benefits are included in the above tables.
Approval
This report was approved by the board of directors on 4 March 2003 and signed on its behalf by:

*on appointment
†Lady Robin Innes Ker purchased 1,000 shares on 3 January, 2003

At 31 December 2002, each executive director had a notional additional interest in 5,676,533 ordinary shares of the company,
being the unappropriated part of the holding by the trustee of the Taylor Woodrow Group ESOP Trust in connection with the
executive share option plan and the executive bonus plan, details of which appear on page 33.
Directors’ pension entitlements
Keith Egerton, who retired during the year, was a member of the company’s defined benefit pension scheme. Denis Mac Daid is a
member of the scheme under which benefits accrue at the rate of 2% of pensionable salary for each year of pensionable service.
Mr Mac Daid has enhanced pension rights by virtue of overseas service for the company which entitles him to retire on maximum
pension at age 60 years and 7 months. If Mr Mac Daid were to continue in employment with the company after that time, his
pension entitlement would increase by approximately 1% for each additional month’s service. The accrued entitlements under the
scheme are as follows:

Sir George Russell
4 March 2003

Pension benefits earned by directors (1)
Accrued pension 31
December 2001
Name of director

£000

Increase in accrued
pension in the year
excluding inflation
£000

Denis Mac Daid
Keith Egerton (3)
Adrian Auer (4)

120
84
3

45
0
2

Increase in accrued
pension in the year
including inflation
£000

43
0
2

Transfer value in
respect of increase
in accrued pension
£000

595
(2)
13

£000

165
84
5

The following table sets out the transfer value of the directors’ accrued benefits under the scheme calculated in a manner
consistent with the “Retirement Benefits Schemes – Transfer Values (GN11)” published by the Institute of Actuaries and the
Faculty of Actuaries.

Name of director

Denis Mac Daid
Keith Egerton (3)
Adrian Auer (4)

Transfer value
31 December 2001 (2)
£000

Transfer value
31 December 2002 (2)
£000

Increase in transfer value in
the year net of contributions (2)
£000

1,745
1,588
29

2,314
1,690
41

569
100
7

The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to the individual director. Instead, they represent a
potential liability of the pension scheme.
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Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts

Accrued pension 31
December 2002

United Kingdom company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period. In preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:–
■

select appropriate accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

■

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

■

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed;

■

prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records. They are also responsible for the Group’s system of internal
financial control and for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Accounting Policies

to the Members of Taylor Woodrow plc

We have audited the financial statements of Taylor Woodrow
plc for the year ended 31 December 2002 which comprise the
profit and loss account, the balance sheets, the cash flow
statement, the statement of total recognised gains and losses,
the reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds, the
note of historical cost profits and losses, the statement of
accounting policies and the related notes 1 to 32. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein. We have also audited the information
in the part of the directors’ remuneration report that is
described as having been audited.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As described in the statement of directors’ responsibilities,
the company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and accounting standards. They are
also responsible for the preparation of the other information
contained in the annual report including the directors’
remuneration report. Our responsibility is to audit the financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report
described as having been audited in accordance with relevant
United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and
auditing standards.
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report
described as having been audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to
you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent
with the financial statements, if the company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and transactions with the company and other members of the
group is not disclosed.
We review whether the corporate governance statement
reflects the company's compliance with the seven provisions
of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it
does not. We are not required to consider whether the
board's statements on internal control cover all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
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group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures.
We read the directors’ report and the other information
contained in the annual report for the above year as described
in the contents section including the unaudited part of the
directors’ remuneration report and consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom
auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration
report described as having been audited. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the company and the
group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the
part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements and the
part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited.
Opinion
In our opinion:
■ the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and the group as at
31 December 2002 and of the profit of the group for the
year then ended; and
■ the financial statements and the part of the directors’
remuneration report described as having been audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985.

Accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been used consistently,
unless otherwise stated, in dealing with items which are
considered material.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards under the historical cost
convention modified by the revaluation of certain properties.
As permitted by the Companies Act 1985 the company has
not presented its own profit and loss account.
Basis of consolidation
The financial statements consolidate the accounts of the
company and its subsidiary undertakings and include the
Group’s share of the results and post-acquisition reserves of
its joint ventures. The results of the companies acquired are
included from the date of their acquisition.

Realised profits or losses on the disposal of tangible assets
are included in ordinary profit; such profits are calculated by
reference to the carrying value of the asset.
Research and development costs are written off as incurred.
Overseas currencies
Exchange differences arising in the ordinary course of trading
are reflected in the profit and loss account.
Profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiary undertakings,
joint ventures and branches are translated into sterling at
average rates. Assets and liabilities are translated at exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

A joint venture is defined as an undertaking other than a
subsidiary or associated undertaking in which the Group has
a significant influence and which is jointly controlled by the
joint venturers.

Unrealised exchange differences on share capital, revaluation
reserve, pre-acquisition retained profit and loss account and
inter-company long-term loans are taken to revaluation reserve
without provision for taxation.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of joint
ventures is shown in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Exchange differences on post-acquisition profits in overseas
currencies are taken to retained profit and loss account.

Investments in joint ventures are included in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost plus the appropriate shares of
post-acquisition results and reserves as disclosed in the
latest balance sheets.

Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss
account on a straight line basis.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the
fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is capitalised as an
asset and amortised through the profit and loss account over
its useful economic life, to a maximum of 20 years. Goodwill
arising on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings prior to
1 January 1998 was written off against retained profit and loss
account under the Group’s policy prior to the implementation
of FRS 10 ‘Goodwill and Intangible Assets’. The goodwill has
not been reinstated in the balance sheet. Any goodwill written
off against reserves will be charged to the profit and loss
account in the event of the disposal of the related business.
Turnover
Turnover comprises sales of private housing and development
properties on legal completion, gross rents receivable, the
value of the contracting work executed during the year and
the invoiced value of other sales.

Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
4 March 2003

done in prior years. Profit on contracts is stated after provision
for known losses and contingencies. No credit is taken for
claims until the cash is received.

Profit on ordinary activities for the year
The profit for the year includes the result of the year’s
operations together with residual profits in respect of work

Liquid resources
Liquid resources include deposits repayable after more than
one day and current asset investments.
Fixed assets
Investment properties are valued annually. Fixed asset
properties are valued every three years. Long leasehold
properties are defined as those properties with an unexpired
lease term of more than 50 years.
Net surpluses on valuations of investment properties are credited
to revaluation reserve. Any permanent diminution in value of
investment properties below cost is charged to the profit and
loss account. No depreciation is provided on investment
properties; this constitutes a departure from the statutory rules
requiring fixed assets to be depreciated over their useful lives and
is necessary to enable the accounts to give a true and fair view.
Depreciation is only one of the many factors reflected in the
annual valuation and the amount, which might otherwise have
been shown, cannot be separately identified or quantified.
Surpluses on valuations of fixed asset properties are credited
to revaluation reserve and any deficits below original cost are
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Accounting Policies continued

Group Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 December 2002

written off to profit and loss account. Depreciation is provided
where material on fixed asset properties on the cost or
valuation less estimated residual value so as to write them
off systematically over their useful economic lives.
Depreciation on plant is calculated on a straight line basis to
write off the cost over the estimated useful lives, which range
from 1 to 20 years.
Group undertakings
Investments are included in the parent company’s balance
sheet at cost less the Group’s share of any post-acquisition
losses and provision for any further permanent diminution
in value.
Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes all direct costs and production overheads
where appropriate.
Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided in full on timing differences
that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay
more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates
expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax
rates and law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of
income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods
different from those in which they are included in the
financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The potential liability to taxation on the surpluses on valuations
of properties is not provided for in these accounts.

Notes

Continuing operations
Turnover:
Group and share of joint ventures
Less: share of joint ventures’ turnover
Group turnover
Cost of sales

2,215.8
(7.2)

2,149.9
(11.5)

2,208.6
(1,797.9)

–
–

2,208.6
(1,797.9)

2,138.4
(1,772.5)

410.7
(127.9)

–
(25.1)

410.7
(153.0)

365.9
(141.7)

282.8
2.0

(25.1)
–

257.7
2.0

224.2
3.3

284.8

(25.1)

259.7
8.1

227.5
7.9

3

267.8
4.5
(35.9)
(3.3)
(39.2)

235.4
5.2
(34.3)
(4.0)
(38.3)

2
6

233.1
(76.9)

202.3
(64.8)

156.2
(1.1)

137.5
(2.5)

7

155.1
(40.6)

135.0
(37.2)

28

114.5

97.8

1

1

Profit on disposal of investments and properties

2

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Minority equity interests
Profit for the financial year
Dividends paid and proposed
Profit retained

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

–
–

Group operating profit
Share of operating profit in joint ventures

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Goodwill
amortisation and
exceptional
item (note 1)
£m

2,215.8
(7.2)

Gross profit
Administrative expenses

Profit on ordinary activities before interest
Interest receivable
Interest payable: Group
Joint ventures

Before goodwill
amortisation and
exceptional
item
£m

Basic earnings per share

8

28.2p

25.3p

Diluted earnings per share

8

28.1p

25.2p

Adjusted basic earnings per share

8

29.8p

26.6p

Pensions
Pension contributions are charged to the profit and loss account
so as to spread the expected costs of providing pensions over
the service lives of employees in the schemes operated
within the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and expected future
pensionable payroll.
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Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

Balance Sheets

for the year ended 31 December 2002

at 31 December 2002

Notes

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

Profit for the financial year
Unrealised deficit on revaluation of properties
Revaluation reversed on fixed asset properties transferred to stocks
Tax on realised revaluation surplus

155.1
(20.7)
(19.8)
(1.0)

135.0
(2.5)
–
(1.3)

Currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments

113.6
(25.0)

131.2
(1.1)

88.6

130.1

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year
Prior year adjustment
Total recognised gains and losses recognised since last annual report and financial statements

28

Group

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

9

241.4

247.0

–

–

10
11

183.9
21.1

259.9
71.9

–
–

–
1.0

–
3.2
–

0.3
–
–

–
–
1,117.1

–
–
1,086.5

449.6

579.1

1,117.1

1,087.5

1,707.0
212.5
12.6
180.6

1,441.4
210.1
4.3
116.5

–
394.3
12.6
94.1

–
423.2
4.3
33.5

2,112.7
(632.3)

1,772.3
(756.1)

501.0
(183.7)

461.0
(389.9)

1,480.4

1,016.2

317.3

71.1

1,930.0
(497.4)
(26.7)

1,595.3
(211.6)
(26.9)

1,434.4
(342.6)
–

1,158.6
(100.3)
–

1,405.9

1,356.8

1,091.8

1,058.3

138.2
591.2
63.4
21.5
591.6

137.9
590.5
134.2
21.5
472.1

138.2
591.2
–
21.5
340.9

137.9
590.5
6.7
21.5
301.7

1,405.9
–

1,356.2
0.6

1,091.8
–

1,058.3
–

1,405.9

1,356.8

1,091.8

1,058.3

Notes

£m

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Tangible assets
Investment properties
Other
Investments
Joint ventures
Share of gross assets (2001: £37.1m)
Share of gross liabilities (2001: £36.8m)

21.1
109.7

Reconciliation of movements in group shareholders’ funds

27.2
(27.2)
13
13
14

Other
Group undertakings

for the year ended 31 December 2002

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

Profit for the financial year
Dividends

155.1
(40.6)

135.0
(37.2)

Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (net)
New share capital subscribed
Shares repurchased

114.5
(66.5)
1.7
–

97.8
(4.9)
406.5
(50.3)

49.7

449.1

Opening shareholders’ funds as previously stated
Prior year adjustment (note 28)

1,335.1
21.1

887.7
19.4

Opening shareholders’ funds as restated

1,356.2

907.1

Closing shareholders’ funds

1,405.9

1,356.2

Net increase in shareholders’ funds

Group historical cost profits and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2002

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Current asset investments
Cash at bank and in hand

15
16
17

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

18

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Represented by:
Capital and reserves – equity
Called up ordinary share capital
Share premium account
Revaluation reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Profit and loss account

19
23

24
25
26
27
28

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests in equity of subsidiary undertakings

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

Reported profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Realisation of property revaluation surpluses of previous years

233.1
13.9

202.3
8.4

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 4 March 2003.

Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation

247.0

210.7

Signed on behalf of the board of directors

Historical cost profit for the year after taxation, minority interests and dividends

127.4

104.9

Dr R Hawley
Director
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Company

P T Johnson
Director
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Group Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2002

for the year ended 31 December 2002

Notes

Operating activities
Cash inflow from operating activities

£m

29

Dividends from joint ventures
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
Interest paid
Dividends paid by subsidiary undertakings to minority shareholders

5.5
(34.9)
(9.9)

1. Segmental analysis

By activity
Housing
Property development and investment
Construction

By market
North America
Rest of the World
(78.5)

(11.4)
140.4

Total overseas
United Kingdom

Goodwill amortisation/goodwill

129.0

Net debt
Minority interests
Equity shareholders’ funds

(29.7)
–

Net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals
Equity dividends paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before use of liquid
resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Cash (placed on)/withdrawn from short-term deposit
(Purchase)/sale of current asset investments

(222.3)
(58.0)

29

(280.3)
(36.4)

49.0

(85.5)
47.9
2.9

(69.3)
1.7
–

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing
29

2001
£m

1,751.8
92.9
363.9

1,523.0
176.7
438.7

245.0
14.7
11.1

182.4
41.7
10.8

1,225.4
234.5
(47.6)

1,129.6
347.8
(70.0)

2,208.6

2,138.4

270.8

234.9

1,412.3

1,407.4

(13.1)

(10.7)

241.4

247.0

257.7

224.2

1,653.7

1,654.4

50.8
2.3
(50.3)

2.9
(207.4)

286.8
(120.8)

263.3
(27.9)

141.4
(262.4)

Capital
employed
2002
£m

As restated
(note 28)
2001
£m

544.3
98.5

611.0
134.4

66.5
23.3

58.1
18.8

337.8
7.2

310.6
(15.4)

642.8
1,565.8

745.4
1,393.0

89.8
181.0

76.9
158.0

345.0
1,067.3

295.2
1,112.2

2,208.6

2,138.4

270.8

234.9

1,412.3

1,407.4

(13.1)

(10.7)

241.4

247.0

257.7

224.2

1,653.7

1,654.4

(247.8)
–
1,405.9

(297.6)
(0.6)
1,356.2

Turnover by origin represents sales to third parties and is not materially different from turnover to third parties by destination.

(29.7)
(37.8)

(61.0)
(8.3)

2001
£m

Group
operating
profit
2002
£m

(39.3)

61.5

30

Group
turnover by
origin
2002
£m

Goodwill amortisation/goodwill – housing

(48.2)
(30.3)

(8.8)
70.3

Net cash inflow from capital expenditure
and financial investment
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1.0

(74.5)

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of fixed assets and properties
Sale of fixed assets and properties

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year

–

(51.2)
(23.3)

Tax paid

2001
£m

219.0

(17.9)

Taxation
UK Corporation tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from management of
liquid resources
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital by Taylor Woodrow plc
Repurchase of ordinary share capital
Debt due within one year:
new loans
repayment of loans
Debt due after one year:
new loans
repayment of loans

£m

147.4

4.4
(20.7)
(1.6)

Net cash outflow from returns on investments
and servicing of finance

Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings
Net overdrafts acquired with subsidiary

2002
£m

32.6

(3.0)

12.3

(37.7)

Operating profit for construction excludes its share of the construction joint ventures and interest. Profit before taxation for
construction is £21.1m (2001: £22.8m) including these items.
Operating profit for 2002 in the United Kingdom is stated after deduction of exceptional administrative expenses of
£12.0m for restructuring, mainly redundancies and office relocations, being Housing £10.4m, Property £1.0m and
Construction £0.6m (2001: £9.8m being £8.4m in respect of the integration of Bryant and Taywood Homes housing
operations and £1.4m in respect of the integration of Taylor Woodrow and Bryant Construction operations).
The charge for goodwill amortisation of £13.1m (2001: £10.7m) is in respect of United Kingdom £12.9m (2001: £10.7m)
and North America £0.2m (2001: £nil). Goodwill of £241.4m (2001: £247.0m) is in respect of United Kingdom £234.1m
(2001: £247.0m) and North America £7.3m (2001: £nil).
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2. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

5. Particulars of employees
2002
£m

2001
£m

13.9

18.3

Profit on disposal of businesses
Profit on sale of investments
Profit on disposal of investment and fixed asset properties

–
3.9
4.2

1.1
3.3
3.5

Profit on disposal of investments and properties

8.1

7.9

21.4

13.0

3.9
2.3
0.3
0.6

2.0
2.0
0.2
0.7

0.1
0.1
7.2

0.3
0.3
11.3

Ordinary profit before taxation includes
Rents on investment properties, less outgoings

Profit before taxation is after charging:
Plant hire
Rentals under operating leases:
Hire of plant and machinery
Other operating lease rentals
Research and development (net of contributions received of £1.0m; 2001: £1.3m)
Auditors’ remuneration for external audit services (including UK £0.4m; 2001:£0.5m)
Auditors’ remuneration for other services (including UK £0.1m; 2001:£0.4m):
Tax advice
Due diligence and other services
Depreciation – plant (including loss on disposal £0.1m; 2001 net of profit on disposal: £0.3m)

Auditors’ remuneration for due diligence and other services in 2001 does not include amounts totalling £0.3m which were
capitalised as part of costs of acquisition of Bryant Group plc.

Average number employed
Housing
Property development and investment
Construction

United Kingdom
Overseas

Remuneration
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

2002
£m

2001
£m

Bank loans and overdrafts
Other loans

2.7
33.2

15.7
18.6

Interest payable

35.9

34.3
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2001
No.

2,535
230
3,265

2,416
288
3,313

6,030

6,017

3,456
2,574

3,337
2,680

6,030

6,017

£m

£m

160.8
13.8
8.0

154.4
13.0
8.2

182.6

175.6

2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

6. Tax on profit on ordinary activities

3. Interest payable: Group

4. Directors’ emoluments
Details of directors’ emoluments are contained in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 39 and form part of these financial
statements.

2002
No.

United Kingdom tax
Corporation tax: Current year
Prior year
Relief for overseas tax
Deferred tax:
Current year
Prior year
Joint ventures
Overseas tax
Current:
Current year
Prior year
Deferred:
Current year
Prior year

53.1
(5.3)
(3.8)
3.9
4.2
0.7

52.9
–
(9.0)
–
(11.1)
(0.2)

22.2
(4.7)
6.2
0.4

35.1
–
3.4
(6.3)

76.9

64.8
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6. Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

9. Intangible assets – goodwill
2002
£m

257.7
7.5

202.3
0.7

31 December 2002

265.2

234.4

203.0

70.3

60.9

Accumulated amortisation
31 December 2001
Charge for the year

10.7
13.1

31 December 2002

23.8

(10.0)
6.7
0.5
(3.2)
3.9
(3.8)
5.2
2.5
(10.3)
(0.4)
(0.6)
0.7

–
6.8
3.7
(2.4)
9.2
(9.0)
12.2
3.9
(1.1)
(2.7)
(2.8)
0.3

Net values
31 December 2002

241.4

31 December 2001

247.0

61.5

79.0

233.1
1.3

Group profit on ordinary activities before tax

Group current tax charge for year
There is no material difference between the tax rates on ordinary activities and exceptional items.
7. Ordinary dividends on equity shares

Interim of 2.2p per share (2001: 2.0p)
Proposed final of 5.2p per share (2001: 4.7p)

2002
£m

2001
£m

12.2
28.4

11.6
25.6

40.6

37.2

8. Earnings per share
2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

155.1

135.0

by the weighted average number of shares for basic earnings per share
weighted average of dilutive options
weighted average of dilutive awards under the Group Executive Bonus Plan

549.3m
2.8m
0.3m

534.3m
1.8m
0.5m

for diluted earnings per share

552.4m

536.6m

8.4
–

6.6
0.3

163.5

141.9

Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing:
Profit for the financial year

Adjusted basic earnings per share adjusts profit for financial year as follows:
add: exceptional restructuring (2001: integration) costs (net of tax effect)
add: losses on disposal of businesses (net of tax effect)
for adjusted basic earnings per share
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Group
£m

Cost
31 December 2001
Additions in the year (note 30)

The differences between the total current tax shown above and the amount calculated
by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax are as follows:
Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Add: share of joint ventures’ loss before tax

Tax on Group profit on ordinary activities at standard UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2001: 30%)
Effects of:
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior years
Amortisation of goodwill and fair value adjustments
Other permanent disallowable expenditure
Non taxable income
Overseas income receivable
Double tax relief for overseas tax
Higher rates of tax on overseas earnings
Capital allowances for the period in excess of depreciation
Short-term timing differences
Pension provision
Tax trading losses carried forward
Other

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

10. Investment properties
Freehold
£m

Long
leasehold
£m

Total
£m

Valuation
31 December 2001
Changes in exchange rates
Additions
Disposals
Net deficit on valuation

202.6
(1.2)
0.6
(11.7)
(20.7)

57.3
–
–
(43.2)
0.2

259.9
(1.2)
0.6
(54.9)
(20.5)

31 December 2002

169.6

14.3

183.9

112.2
57.4

10.0
4.3

122.2
61.7

169.6

14.3

183.9

Representing:
Properties valued
Cost
Net surplus
Valuation in 2002

The investment properties of the Group were valued at £183.9m as at 31 December 2002 by the following valuers, on an open
market basis:
Canada – Altus Group
United Kingdom – Knight Frank

C$10.6m equivalent £4.2m
£179.7m

United Kingdom investment property valuations were undertaken by external Chartered Surveyors in accordance with the
Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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11. Other tangible assets

13. Investments in joint ventures and other companies
Freehold
properties
£m

Cost and valuation
31 December 2001
Changes in exchange rates
Additions
Transfers to stocks
Disposals
Revaluation reversed on fixed asset properties transferred to stock
Net deficit on revaluation
31 December 2002

Joint ventures
Plant
£m

Total
£m

52.3
(0.2)
0.6
(22.2)
(0.9)
(19.8)
(0.2)

88.5
(1.0)
4.5
–
(36.0)
–
–

140.8
(1.2)
5.1
(22.2)
(36.9)
(19.8)
(0.2)

9.6

56.0

65.6

9.3
(2.3)

–
–

Valuation in 2000
Others not valued – cost

7.0
2.6

–
56.0

1.6
–
(1.3)

–
3.9
–

31 December 2002

0.3

–

–

0.3

3.9

Amounts provided
31 December 2001
Reductions
Charge for year

0.2
–
0.1

–
–
–

1.1
(1.1)
–

1.3
(1.1)
0.1

–
–
0.7

9.3
(2.3)

31 December 2002

0.3

–

–

0.3

0.7

7.0
58.6

Net values
31 December 2002

–

–

–

–

3.2

31 December 2001

0.1

0.2

–

0.3

–

68.9
(0.8)
(30.7)
7.1

31 December 2002

–

44.5

44.5

Net values
31 December 2002

9.6

11.5

21.1

31 December 2001

52.3

19.6

71.9

The valuations of fixed asset properties, as at 31 December 2000 were made by Knight Frank, Chartered Surveyors, on an
existing use value basis in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,
and those valuations, as adjusted for sales and transfers to stocks, amounted to £7.0m.
12. Financial commitments

Dividends received from investments were £nil (2001: £1.0m).
A Group undertaking is a participant in contracts to maintain and provide facilities management services for Private Finance
Initiative projects for certain joint venture companies, Autolink Concessionaires (M6) PLC (Group interest in capital 19.5%)
and United Healthcare (South Buckinghamshire) Limited (Group interest in capital was 19.9% – sold on 8 July 2002).
The Group’s share of the value of these contracts is £28.1m and the contracts will continue for periods of 5 to 22 years up to 2024.

Company

Shares
£m

Loans
£m

Total
£m

Cost
31 December 2001
Additions
Disposals

878.7
–
(2.6)

216.3
24.7
–

1,095.0
24.7
(2.6)

31 December 2002

876.1

241.0

1,117.1

8.5
(8.5)

–
–

8.5
(8.5)

2002
£m

2001
£m

Amounts provided
31 December 2001
Reductions

–

3.2

31 December 2002

–

–

–

Net values
31 December 2002

876.1

241.0

1,117.1

31 December 2001

870.2

216.3

1,086.5

Future capital expenditure not provided for in the accounts:

Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2002 the Group was committed to making the following payments during the next year in respect of operating leases:
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The directors’ estimate of the value of unlisted investments was £3.2m (2001: £0.3m).

14. Investments in group undertakings

The other tangible assets of the Group in 2001 included the plant of the company (2002: £nil). Plant cost of £2.2m (2001 cost:
£2.2m) was transferred to a subsidiary in 2002. The accumulated depreciation on transfer was £1.5m (being 2001: £1.2m plus
£0.3m charged in 2002).

Leases which expire:
Within one year
Within two to five years
After five years

Other
investments
£m

1.1
–
(1.1)

68.9
(0.8)
(30.7)
7.1

Other 2002
£m

Total
£m

0.2
–
(0.2)

–
–
–
–

Land and
buildings 2002
£m

Loans
£m

0.3
–
–

Depreciation
31 December 2001
Changes in exchange rates
Disposals
Charge for year

Contracts placed (wholly in respect of subsidiary undertakings)

Shares of
reserves
£m

Cost and share of reserves
31 December 2001
Additions
Reductions

Representing:
Properties valued
Cost
Net deficit

Shares
unlisted
£m

Land and
buildings 2001
£m

Other 2001
£m

All of the above investments are unlisted.
0.2
0.8
1.2

0.6
4.1
–

0.2
0.2
1.2

0.9
2.2
–

2.2

4.7

1.6

3.1

Particulars of principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 66, which forms part of these financial statements.
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15. Stocks

18. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Raw materials and consumables
Finished goods and goods for resale
Residential developments
Land
Development and construction costs
Commercial, industrial and mixed development properties

Group
2002
£m

2001
£m

0.1
28.2

0.2
26.0

1,004.5
507.8
166.4

835.6
419.6
160.0

1,707.0

1,441.4

16. Debtors

Receivable within one year
Trade debtors
Amounts recoverable on contracts
Group undertakings
Joint ventures
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Receivable after one year
Prepayments and accrued income
Other debtors

Group
2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

Company
2002
£m

2001
As restated
(note 28)
£m

58.0
35.9
–
–
79.6
13.6

22.9
43.9
–
1.0
90.7
14.1

–
–
393.0
–
0.5
0.1

–
–
418.6
–
0.4
1.0

7.8
17.6

3.1
34.4

–
0.7

0.1
3.1

212.5

210.1

394.3

423.2

Other debtors receivable after one year includes Group £15.0m (2001 as restated: £30.2m) and Company £0.7m (2001 as
restated: £3.1m) in respect of deferred taxation, which is referred to in notes 23 and 28. The net deferred tax position of
£13.5m (2001: £29.1m) relates to short-term timing differences of £21.5m (2001: £40.5m) offset by capital allowances of
£8.0m (2001: £11.4m). The company deferred tax balance relates to short-term timing differences.

Taylor Woodrow Group Executive Bonus Plan
Taylor Woodrow Group Executive Option Plan
Taylor Woodrow Group Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

Company
2002
£m

2001
£m

10.5
5.6
77.5
263.5
–
6.0
34.1
5.6
17.9
183.2
28.4

11.2
207.9
79.4
208.1
–
5.6
46.4
5.5
25.4
141.0
25.6

3.8
–
–
0.1
131.3
–
–
–
–
20.1
28.4

5.4
200.0
–
1.4
143.2
–
3.5
–
–
10.8
25.6

632.3

756.1

183.7

389.9

Accruals includes £0.3m (2001: £nil) in respect of contributions to overseas pension schemes referred to in note 31.
19. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Debenture loans (note 20)
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 21)
Trade creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Due
Due
Due
Due

17. Current asset investments

These comprise ordinary shares of the company held in trust for the:

2001
£m

Group
2002
£m

2001
£m

Company
2002
£m

2001
£m

424.4
0.5
68.3
4.2

198.8
0.5
7.9
4.4

342.6
–
–
–

96.0
–
–
4.3

497.4

211.6

342.6

100.3

Trade creditors include the following amounts in respect of land, of which £63.4m (2001: £28.0m) is secured against land acquired
for development.

Prepayments and accrued income receivable after one year includes £7.7m (2001: £2.9m) in respect of the Taylor Woodrow
Group Pension and Life Assurance Fund referred to in note 31.

Own shares

Debenture loans (note 20)
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 21)
Payments received on account
Trade creditors
Group undertakings
Joint ventures
Taxation on profits
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Dividend

Group
2002
£m

Group
2002
£m

2001
£m

Company
2002
£m

2001
£m

12.6

4.3

12.6

4.3

within one year
in more than one year but not more than two years
in more than two years but not more than five years
in more than five years

Group
2002
£m

2001
£m

55.5
29.4
38.9
–

45.1
3.2
3.9
0.8

123.8

53.0

Trade creditors due after one year are interest free, have a weighted average life of 2.4 years (2001: 2.7 years) and are all
denominated in sterling. There is no material difference between the fair value and the book value of these financial liabilities.

Number

0.3m
7.0m
0.4m

Included in accruals at 31 December 2002 is £4.4m (2001: £4.7m) in respect of continuing post-retirement health care insurance
premiums for retired long-service employees. Of this total £0.3m (2001: £0.3m) is disclosed as due within one year. The accrual
is based upon the actuarial assessment of the remaining cost by a qualified actuary on a net present value basis at 31 December
2002. The cost is calculated assuming a discount rate of 5% per annum and an increase in medical expenses of 12.2% per annum.
The premium cost to the Group in respect of retired long-service employees for 2002 was £0.2m (2001: £0.2m).

The market value of the shares at 31 December 2002 was £13.0m (2001: £4.4m) and their nominal value was £1.9m (2001: £0.7m).
Dividends on these shares have been waived except for 0.01p per share. All of these shares are under option to employees.
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20. Debenture loans

6.92% debentures 2004 – unsecured
7.56% notes 2005 – unsecured
Floating rate notes 2006 – unsecured
7.04% notes 2008 – unsecured
7.333% debentures 2008 – unsecured
6.625% guaranteed bonds 2012 – unsecured
9.5% first mortgage debenture stock 2014 – secured
Other secured loans at rates of interest from 7% to 11.4%
Repayable wholly within five years
Repayable by installments over periods exceeding five years

21. Bank loans and overdrafts
Group
2002
£m

2001
£m

Company
2002
£m

2001
£m

11.3
13.4
3.8
49.5
10.0
246.2
96.4

15.7
19.5
5.4
49.5
10.8
–
96.0

–
–
3.8
–
–
246.2
96.4

–
–
5.4
–
–
–
96.0

2.4
1.9

10.4
2.7

–
–

–
–

434.9

210.0

346.4

101.4

Group
2002
£m

2001
£m

Company
2002
£m

2001
£m

At rates of interest from 4.88% to 30%
Repayable:
In more than one year but not more than two years

0.5

0.5

–

–

Total falling due in more than one year
In one year or less or on demand

0.5
5.6

0.5
207.9

–
–

–
200.0

6.1

208.4

–

200.0

Group secured bank loans and overdrafts amounted to £3.3m (2001: £3.8m). Secured bank loans and overdrafts are secured
principally on certain fixed asset properties and land.
The fair value of bank loans and overdrafts at 31 December 2002 and 2001 is similar to their book value at those dates.

Repayable
In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not more than five years
In more than five years – installments loans
– other

17.8
10.9
3.6
392.1

5.6
43.7
3.9
145.6

–
–
–
342.6

–
–
–
96.0

Total falling due in more than one year
Within one year or on demand

424.4
10.5

198.8
11.2

342.6
3.8

96.0
5.4

434.9

210.0

346.4

101.4

At 31 December 2002, the Group had undrawn, committed borrowing facilities expiring as follows:
Group
£m

In more than two years
In more than one year but not more than two years
In one year or less

159.8
69.0
76.4
305.2

Charges for secured loans have been given principally on certain investment properties and development land.
22. Treasury policy and financial instruments
The fair value of the Group’s debenture loans is principally determined by reference to market prices and as at 31 December 2002
was as follows:

6.92% debentures 2004 – unsecured
7.56% notes 2005 – unsecured
Floating rate notes 2006 – unsecured
7.04% notes 2008 – unsecured
7.333% debentures 2008 – unsecured
6.625% guaranteed bonds 2012 – unsecured
9.5% first mortgage debenture stock 2014 – secured
Other secured loans at rates of interest from 7% to 11.4%

2002
Book value
£m

2002
Fair value
£m

2001
Book value
£m

2001
Fair value
£m

11.3
13.4
3.8
49.5
10.0
246.2
96.4
4.3

11.6
15.0
3.8
52.0
10.3
263.9
131.1
4.6

15.7
19.5
5.4
49.5
10.8
–
96.0
13.1

16.2
20.6
5.4
48.9
11.1
–
122.7
13.6

434.9

492.3

210.0

238.5

The £250.0m 6.625% guaranteed bonds 2012 were issued on 7 February 2002 for net proceeds of £245.9m.

In accordance with FRS 13, the disclosures set out below exclude all short-term debtors and creditors.
Objectives, policies and strategies
The Group treasury function operates within policies and procedures approved by the board. These include strict controls on the
use of financial instruments in managing the Group’s financial risk. The objectives are to manage financial risk, to ensure sufficient
liquidity is maintained to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably. The Group does not undertake
any speculative or trading activity in financial instruments or foreign currencies.
Treasury functions are centralised in our main geographic locations. All treasury operations must remain in compliance with Group
policy and are closely monitored by the Group treasury department.
Long-term debt is required primarily for land and property investment. In addition to equity and retained profits, a mixture of bank
and other debt is used to finance our housing and property operations. Where possible, temporary cash balances made available
by our construction companies are used to reduce our short-term borrowing facilities.
The Group maintains a balance between certainty and flexibility through the use of term borrowings, overdrafts and committed
revolving credit facilities with a range of maturity dates. It is the Group’s policy to maintain committed facilities with overlapping
maturity dates in order to ensure continuity of funding.
The Group currently manages its interest rate exposure by obtaining the appropriate form of finance for the underlying assets.
Equity retained profits and long-term debt are primarily used to finance our goodwill, land bank, fixed assets, investment
properties and commercial developments. Fixed rate term borrowings are used to partly finance our investment properties in
order to match fixed rental income and tenure of lease and also to finance our land bank. Short-term borrowings are primarily
required to finance net current assets other than land bank and commercial developments and are therefore kept at floating rate.
The Group will also use derivatives to manage interest rate exposure but only if deemed commercially appropriate and combined
with underlying borrowings.
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22. Treasury policy and financial instruments continued

22. Treasury policy and financial instruments continued

Interest rates and currencies of cash and net debt:

31 December 2002
Sterling
US dollars
Canadian dollars
Other

Fixed rate debt
Weighted
average
time until
maturity
years

Cash
£m

Floating
rate debt
£m

Fixed
rate debt
£m

Weighted
average
interest rate
%

119.6
42.6
6.2
12.2

6.6
–
–
2.6

392.1
14.7
25.0
–

7.5
7.7
7.5
–

9.3
1.9
2.5
–

180.6

9.2

431.8

7.5

8.6

31 December 2001
Sterling
US dollars
Canadian dollars
Other

48.7
42.4
0.9
24.5

208.8
–
–
5.0

145.3
21.1
38.2
–

8.9
7.6
7.4
–

10.3
4.0
4.2
–

116.5

213.8

204.6

8.5

8.5

Floating rate borrowings bear interest based on short-term inter-bank rates (principally LIBOR or equivalent applicable to periods of
three months or less). Cash, which is all at floating rates, yields interest based on short-term bank rates applicable to periods of
three months or less.
The above table does not include long-term trade creditors which are referred to in note 19.

The Group currently takes a long-term view on its foreign investments. Where appropriate, foreign currency translation exposure
is reduced by partially financing overseas assets with local borrowings of the same currency.
The Group does not take unnecessary risks with foreign currency transactions and it is the responsibility of operating subsidiaries
to either avoid or hedge significant exposures back to their functional currency using derivatives or foreign currency borrowings.
Foreign exchange hedging transactions are restricted to those required to hedge underlying commercial transactions and may not
be used for speculative purposes. Currency options may be purchased within agreed policy but the uncovered purchase and
writing of options is not permitted.
Currency analysis of net monetary assets/(liabilities) denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations involved:
Net monetary assets/(liabilities) denominated in other currencies
Sterling
£m

US dollars
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

31 December 2002
Sterling
Canadian dollars
Other

–
–
–

5.5
1.2
0.4

(5.1)
–
(12.0)

0.4
1.2
(11.6)

Total

–

7.1

(17.1)

(10.0)

31 December 2001
Sterling
Canadian dollars
Other

–
–
(1.3)

4.5
2.4
0.3

12.2
–
1.7

16.7
2.4
0.7

Total

(1.3)

7.2

13.9

19.8
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23. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Group
£m

Pension obligations
31 December 2001
Utilised

4.7
–

31 December 2002

4.7

Deferred taxation
31 December 2001 as previously stated
Prior year adjustment (note 28)

1.6
(0.5)

31 December 2001 as restated
Charged to profit and loss account

1.1
0.4

31 December 2002

1.5

The balance arises from the effect of short-term timing differences.

A large proportion of the Group’s capital employed is in currencies other than sterling with the result that currency movements
can affect the balance sheet.

Functional currency of operations

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the Group’s interest rate and currency profile have been excluded from the above
disclosures. The Group has forward contracts to hedge intra-Group loans receivable of US$89.5m (2001: US$56m) to Canadian
dollars, US$75m (2001: US$nil) to sterling and –C10.3m (2001: –Cnil) to sterling. The Group has a currency swap relating to the
7.04% unsecured loan notes 2008, acquired with Bryant Group plc in 2001. They were issued by way of a US$81m 6.59% fixed
rate US private placement. The dollar proceeds were swapped into sterling at a fixed rate of interest of 7.04%. The combined fair
value of the loan and swap is shown in note 20.

Housing maintenance
31 December 2001
Changes in exchange rates
Acquisition
Charged to profit and loss account
Utilised
Unused amounts reversed

21.1
(1.1)
0.3
13.6
(12.9)
(0.5)

31 December 2002

20.5

Total provisions

26.7

Pension obligations relate to the Bryant Group Pension Scheme referred to in note 31.
There is no unprovided deferred taxation other than relating to surpluses arising on revaluation of properties referred to in note 26.
The provisions in respect of housing maintenance arise principally from warranties and other liabilities on housing sold and
payment of these costs is likely to occur over a period of ten years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2002

for the year ended 31 December 2002

24. Ordinary share capital

28. Profit and loss account
Group & Company
2002
2001
£m
£m

Authorised
780,000,000 shares of 25p each (2001: 780,000,000)

195.0

195.0

Number of
shares

£m

31 December 2001
Options exercised

551,487,089
1,243,019

137.9
0.3

31 December 2002

552,730,108

138.2

Called up, allotted and fully paid ordinary shares

During the year options were exercised on 1,243,019 ordinary shares at varying prices from 107.2p to 189.5p and that number of
shares was issued for a total consideration of £1.7m.

Group & Company
£m

31 December 2001
Amortisation of discount on issue of debt and expenses of issue transferred from profit and loss account
Premium on ordinary shares issued during the year less expenses of issues

590.5
(0.7)
1.4

31 December 2002

591.2

26. Revaluation reserve

31 December 2002

Company
£m

134.2
(16.4)
(13.9)
(20.7)
(19.8)

6.7
–
(6.7)
–
–

63.4

–

The Group’s revaluation reserve includes surpluses arising on revaluation of properties, which, if realised at 31 December 2002,
would have given rise to a maximum taxation liability of £0.4m (2001: £10.9m).
27. Capital redemption reserve
Group & Company
£m

31 December 2002 and 2001

31 December 2001 as previously stated
Prior year adjustment (see below)

451.0
21.1

298.4
3.3

31 December 2001 as restated
Exchange differences
Transfer to share premium account
Transfer from revaluation reserve
Balance for the year retained
Tax on realised revaluation surplus

472.1
(8.6)
0.7
13.9
114.5
(1.0)

301.7
–
0.7
6.7
31.8
–

31 December 2002

591.6

340.9

In accordance with the Group’s policy, the cumulative amount charged to retained profit and loss account in prior years in respect
of positive goodwill is £4.0m (2001: £4.1m) net of amounts attributable to companies sold or closed; this goodwill would be
charged against profit before taxation on subsequent disposal of the businesses to which it related.

25. Share premium account

31 December 2001
Unrealised exchange differences
Realised and transferred to profit and loss account
Net deficit on property valuations
Revaluation reversed on fixed asset properties transferred to stocks

Company
£m

The profit of the company for the financial year was £72.4m (2001: £88.8m).

Under the Group’s senior executives’ share option scheme and executive share option plan, employees held options at
31 December 2002 to purchase 13,457,458 shares (2001: 9,810,971) at prices between 107.2p and 189.5p per share exercisable
up to 8 December 2012. Under the Group’s savings-related share option scheme, employees held options at 31 December 2002
to purchase 8,775,506 shares (2001: 7,792,327) at prices between 124.4p and 148.8p per share exercisable up to 31 May 2008.

Group
£m

Group
£m

21.5

Prior year adjustment
The adoption of FRS 19 – ‘Deferred Tax’ has required a change to the accounting treatment of deferred tax and the prior year
results have been restated accordingly. Under FRS 19 the company is required to make full provision for deferred tax in respect of
timing differences recognising in total the potential future tax impact of past transactions. Under SSAP 15 provision for deferred
tax was only required if it was expected that timing differences would reverse in the foreseeable future. The Group’s deferred tax
asset and provision at 31 December 2001 have been restated to £30.2m and £1.1m respectively including the recognition of an
additional deferred tax asset of £20.6m and reducing the Group’s deferred tax provision by £0.5m. The total adjustment of £21.1m
has been credited to the profit and loss account as a prior year adjustment, which includes £2.0m credited to profit and loss
account for the year ended 31 December 2001. The total adjustment includes £3.3m credited to the Company’s profit and loss
account as a prior year adjustment. The effect on the 2002 profit and loss account is to increase the tax charge by £9.1m of which
£6.2m is non-recurring.
29. Group cash flow statement
2002
£m

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit
Depreciation and amortisation
(Increase)/decrease in stocks
Increase in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Exchange adjustments

257.7
20.3
(253.6)
(20.9)
140.6
3.3

224.2
22.0
78.6
(26.2)
(75.7)
(3.9)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

147.4

219.0

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increase/(decrease) in cash in year
Cash inflow from increase in debt
Cash outflow/(inflow) from increase/(decrease) in liquid resources

12.3
(30.9)
69.3

(37.7)
(45.0)
(50.8)

50.7
(0.7)
–
–
(0.2)

(133.5)
(0.3)
(5.4)
(116.5)
2.0

Movement in net debt in the year
Net debt at 1 January

49.8
(297.6)

(253.7)
(43.9)

Net debt at 31 December

(247.8)

(297.6)

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows
Amortisation of discount on issue of debt and expenses of issue for the year
Loan notes issued as part of consideration for acquisition
Debt acquired with subsidiary
Exchange movement
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2001
£m
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for the year ended 31 December 2002

29. Group cash flow statement continued

31. Pensions continued

Analysis of net debt
At
1 January
2002
£m

Cash at bank and in hand
Less: Deposits due after one day
Overdrafts on demand

116.5
(52.6)
(7.9)

Cash
flow
£m

68.1
(61.0)
5.2

Non-cash
changes
£m

–
–
–

Exchange
movement
£m

(4.0)
0.5
0.1

At
December
2002
£m

180.6
(113.1)
(2.6)

12.3
Debt due after one year
Debenture loans
Bank loans
Debt due within one year
Debenture loans
Bank loans and overdrafts
Add back overdrafts on demand

(198.8)
(0.5)

(234.6)
(0.8)

5.5
0.7

3.5
0.1

(424.4)
(0.5)

(11.2)
(207.9)
7.9

6.7
203.0
(5.2)

(6.2)
(0.7)
–

0.2
–
(0.1)

(10.5)
(5.6)
2.6

–
–

(0.5)
–

113.1
12.6

(30.9)
Liquid resources
Deposits due after one day
Current asset investments

52.6
4.3

61.0
8.3

The actuaries to each scheme calculated the long-term funding rates to be 14.9%pa (TWGP&LAF) and 13.7% (BGPS) of each
scheme’s respective pensionable salary roll. The Group has decided to fund the TWGP&LAF at the rate of 16.5%pa of
pensionable salaries and to pay an additional £1.09m for 6 years to the BGPS to correct the underfunding position.
The funding policy of the Trustees is to maintain a stable contribution rate with a funding level in excess of 100%.
A valuation of the TWGP&LAF is in progress with an effective date of 1 June 2002. The results of this valuation are not yet available.
The pension charge for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2002 was £8.0m (2001: £8.2m) representing the SSAP 24
charge of £9.1m less £1.1m accrual utilised in respect of the BGPS referred to above. The charge includes £1.0m (2001: £1.0m)
related to overseas schemes. This charge was based on the most recent valuation of the schemes as noted above. Whilst the
formal valuation of the TWGP&LAF is not yet currently complete, the results of the valuation are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s results. There is a net pension prepayment at 31 December 2002 of £3.0m (2001: net provision £1.8m)
(notes 16 and 23).
FRS 17 – Retirement Benefits – is due to replace SSAP 24 – Accounting For Pension Costs. FRS 17 is intended to be fully
effective for accounting periods ending on or after 1 January 2005. Disclosures are required in the transitional period, however.
The valuations of the Group’s pension schemes have been updated to 31 December 2002 and the position of overseas schemes
has been included within the FRS 17 disclosures. The principal actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the disclosure
items are as follows:

69.3
Total

(297.6)

50.7

United Kingdom

(0.7)

(0.2)

(247.8)

30. Acquisition of the business and net assets of Journey Homes
On 15 August 2002, the Group acquired the business and net assets of Journey Homes of Arizona, United States of America,
for £29.7m cash. The net assets acquired included stocks of £25.4m including a fair value uplift of £6m. Goodwill was £7.5m.
The profit and cash flow of Journey Homes were not material to the Group profit and loss account or cash flow.

As at 31 December
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation
General pay inflation
Pension increases

North America

2002

2001

2002

2001

5.6%
2.3%
3.3%
2.0%

5.9%
2.5%
3.7%
2.5%

6.5 – 6.75%
3.5 – 4.0%
4.0 – 4.5%
0.0 – 4.0%

5.9 – 7.25%
3.0 – 3.5%
4.0%
0.0 – 3.0%

31. Pensions
The Group operates Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution pension schemes. In the UK the Taylor Woodrow Group Pension
and Life Assurance Fund (TWGP&LAF) and the Bryant Group Pension Scheme (BGPS) are funded defined benefit schemes
providing pensions related to pay at retirement. Following the merger of these arrangements on 24 June 2002 the schemes
are managed by a corporate trust company, Team Nominees Limited, in which the Group has no shareholding and whose assets
are held separately from the Group. The Defined Benefit schemes were closed to new entrants on 31 March 2002. An alternative
Defined Contribution arrangement, the Taylor Woodrow Personal Choice Plan, is offered to new employees. The Group also
operates a number of overseas pension schemes of the defined benefit type.

The above annual assumptions are prescribed by FRS 17 and do not reflect the assumptions that may be used in future funding
valuations of the Group’s pension schemes.

The most recent formal actuarial valuations of the defined benefit schemes were carried out at 1 June 1999 in the case of the
TWGP&LAF and 1 April 2001 in the case of the BGPS. The projected unit method was used in both valuations and assets were
taken into account using market values.

Assets:

Inflation
Investment return
General pay inflation
Pension increases
Valuation results
Market value of assets
Past service liabilities
Scheme funding levels
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TWGP&LAF

3.0%
4.0%
2.5%
0.5%

pa
pa
pa
pa

BGPS

2.5%
4.0%
2.0%
0.5%

Expected
rate of return
% pa

United
Kingdom
£m

North
America
£m

Total plans
£m

7.0
5.5
5.5

279.2
98.0
90.4

5.4
3.2
5.9

284.6
101.2
96.3

Actuarial value of liabilities

467.6
(629.9)

14.5
(15.2)

482.1
(645.1)

Deficit
Related deferred tax asset

(162.3)
48.7

(0.7)
0.5

(163.0)
49.2

Net pension liability

(113.6)

(0.2)

(113.8)

31 December 2002
Equities
Bonds
Other assets

The main financial assumptions, which are all relative to the inflation assumption, are as set out below:
Assumptions

The fair value of assets and actuarial value of liabilities of the Group’s pension arrangements, including overseas schemes, are set
out below:

pa
pa
pa
pa

TWGP&LAF

BGPS

£379.4m
£348.9m
109%

£82.7m
£88.4m
93%
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31. Pensions continued

31. Pensions continued
Had the Group adopted FRS 17 early, Group profit and loss reserves would have been stated as follows:

Expected
rate of return
% pa

United
Kingdom
£m

North
America
£m

Total plans
£m

6.9
5.9
5.4

322.7
38.3
169.2

9.7
3.5
4.5

332.4
41.8
173.7

530.2
(560.6)

17.7
(15.8)

547.9
(576.4)

Surplus/ (deficit)
Related deferred tax asset/ (liability)

(30.4)
9.1

1.9
(0.6)

(28.5)
8.5

Net pension (liability)/ asset

(21.3)

1.3

(20.0)

31 December 2001
Assets:
Equities
Bonds
Other assets
Actuarial value of liabilities

2002
£m

Profit and loss reserve as reported (2001 as restated – note 28)
Net FRS 17 deficit in relation to Group pension schemes (net of applicable deferred tax)
Remove existing SSAP 24 prepayment and provision for Group pension schemes
(net of applicable deferred tax)
Profit and loss reserve on an FRS 17 basis

2001
£m

591.6
(113.8)

472.1
(20.0)

(1.9)

(1.6)

475.9

450.5

32. Contingent liabilities
The Group and the parent company have entered into performance bonds and agreements in the normal course of business. The
parent company has given guarantees in respect of Group undertakings of £19.4m (2001: £27.9m).

The movement in the scheme deficit is as follows:
2002
£m

Opening deficit in the schemes
Current service cost
Contributions
Past service cost
Settlement
Other finance income
Actuarial losses

(28.5)
(10.7)
12.9
–
1.2
0.9
(138.8)

Closing deficit in the schemes

(163.0)

Had the Group adopted FRS 17 early, the following amounts would have been included in the profit and loss account in place of
the SSAP 24 charge referred to above:
2002
£m

Current service cost
Past service cost

10.7
–

Total which would have been charged to operating profit under FRS 17

10.7

Expected return on scheme assets
Interest cost on scheme liabilities

34.1
(33.2)

Net amount which would have been included as other finance income under FRS 17

0.9

In addition, the following amounts would have been recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses:
2002
£m

Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets
Experience losses arising on scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions
Total actuarial gains and losses which would have been recognised
in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
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%

(78.1)
(69.1)
8.4

16% of scheme assets
11% of scheme liabilities

(138.8)

22% of scheme liabilities
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Particulars of Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

Country of incorporation
and principal operations

Housing
Great Britain

Canada

Irish Republic
Spain
USA

Name of undertaking included in the
consolidated accounts
(*Interests held by subsidiary undertakings)

Taylor Woodrow plc interest is
100% in the issued ordinary
share capital (unless
otherwise stated)

Taylor Woodrow Construction Limited

Notes:

96%
4%

2001
£m

2000
£m

1999
£m

1998
£m

2,215.8

2,149.9

1,557.9

1,522.0

1,408.0

Group operating profit (plus share of joint ventures’
operating profit)
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations
Profit on disposal of properties and investments
Net interest payable

259.7
–
8.1
(34.7)

227.5
–
7.9
(33.1)

171.2
31.7
18.6
(20.0)

141.3
–
3.6
(22.3)

110.9
–
–
(13.4)

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge
Minority interests

233.1
(76.9)
(1.1)

202.3
(64.8)
(2.5)

201.5
(54.4)
(7.3)

122.6
(34.4)
(6.0)

97.5
(26.6)
(5.5)

Profit for the financial year
Dividends

155.1
(40.6)

135.0
(37.2)

139.8
(31.7)

82.2
(20.9)

65.4
(20.5)

Profit retained

114.5

97.8

108.1

61.3

44.9

Balance sheet
Intangible assets – goodwill
Investment properties
Other fixed assets
Net current assets (excluding cash and debt)
Non-current creditors (excluding debt) and provisions

241.4
183.9
24.3
1,303.3
(99.2)

247.0
259.9
72.2
1,114.5
(39.2)

–
346.7
76.9
539.5
(28.4)

–
378.5
103.9
474.8
(21.2)

–
397.1
107.0
409.8
(23.0)

Capital employed

1,653.7

1,654.4

934.7

936.0

890.9

138.2
591.2
63.4
21.5
591.6

137.9
590.5
134.2
21.5
472.1

95.8
233.7
142.5
14.2
401.5

95.3
232.2
125.0
14.2
277.2

100.7
231.3
94.4
8.4
244.9

1,405.9
–
247.8

1,356.2
0.6
297.6

887.7
3.1
43.9

743.9
79.5
112.6

679.7
69.5
141.7

1,653.7

1,654.4

934.7

936.0

890.9

383.0
37.0p
6.12p
231.8p
6.0
4.9%

381.2
20.7p
5.45p
195.1p
3.8
15.1%

402.8
16.4p
5.1p
168.7p
3.2
20.8%

Represented by:
Called up ordinary share capital
Share premium account
Revaluation reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests
Net debt

# Variable

rate, cumulative, non-voting, redeemable preference shares are additionally held.
non-cumulative, non-voting, redeemable preference shares and 9% non-cumulative,
non-voting, redeemable preference shares are additionally held.
### Non-voting, redeemable preferred shares are additionally held.

2002
£m

Profit and loss account
Group turnover (plus share of joint ventures’ turnover)

Taylor Woodrow Capital Developments Limited*
Taylor Woodrow Developments Limited*
Taylor Woodrow Holdings Limited
Taylor Woodrow Holdings of Canada Limited#
Monarch Construction Limited*##
Monarch Development Corporation*
Taylor Woodrow Finance Ireland
Taylor Woodrow de Espana S.A.
Taylor Woodrow Holdings/Arizona, Inc.*
Taylor Woodrow Homes, Inc.*
Taylor Woodrow Homes Florida, Inc.*
Taylor Woodrow, Inc.*
Taylor Woodrow Investments, Inc.
Taylor Woodrow Investments, Inc.*
Monarch Holdings (USA), Inc.*###
Monarch Homes of Florida, Inc.*

Property Development and Investment
Great Britain
Taylor Woodrow Commercial Properties Limited*
Taylor Woodrow Property Company Limited
Clipper Investments Limited*
Pennant Investments Limited*
St Katharine by the Tower Limited*
Canada
Monarch Construction Limited*##
Monarch Development Corporation*
Construction
Great Britain
(operating worldwide)

Five Year Review

## 9.5%

Statistics
Number of shares in issue at year end (millions)
Basic earnings per share
Dividends per share
Shareholders’ funds per share
Dividend cover (times)
Net gearing

552.7
28.2p
7.4p
254.4p
3.8
17.6%

551.5
25.3p
6.7p
245.9p
3.8
21.9%

The figures for 2001 were restated in 2002 in respect of the change in accounting policy for deferred tax to comply with FRS 19.
The figures for 1998 to 2000 were restated in 2001 to show Group turnover including share of joint ventures.
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Shareholder Information

Financial calendar
Annual general meeting
11.30 am on Wednesday 7 May 2003 at The Institution
of Electrical Engineers, Savoy Place, London WC2R 0BL.
Notice of the annual general meeting and details of the
business of the meeting are contained in an accompanying
circular to shareholders.
2002 final dividend
Shares quoted ex-dividend on London
Stock Exchange

28 May 2003

Record date for final dividend entitlement

30 May 2003

Latest date for receipt of Dividend Re-investment
Plan mandate forms
(or notices of revocation)
5.00 pm 9 June 2003
Payment date for final dividend for 2002
(subject to shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting)

1 July 2003

Despatch date for Dividend Re-investment Plan
share certificates and tax vouchers
Interim results
Announcement date

15 July 2003

2 September 2003

Shareholder facilities
Dividend mandates
The company actively encourages all shareholders to receive their
cash dividends by direct transfer to a bank or building society
account. For more information please contact the Registrar.
Dividend re-investment plan
Under the company’s Dividend Re-Investment Plan, shareholders
can choose to invest their cash dividend in purchasing shares of
the company on the market. Details of the Plan are contained in
the circular to shareholders and copies may be obtained from
the Registrar.
Electronic communications
At the 2002 Annual General Meeting shareholders gave
authority for the company to use electronic communications
to send documents to shareholders and to publish documents
on its web site in lieu of sending them to shareholders. The
company’s annual report and associated documents can be
accessed on the company’s website taylorwoodrow.com.
On-line facilities for shareholders
Facilities have been established so that shareholders can
make on-line enquiries about their shareholdings and advise
the company of changes in personal details. You can register
on-line by contacting taylorwoodrow.com and navigating
through Corporate/Investor Relations/Shareholder facilities.
For security of personal information, certain services require
you first to register on-line for a User ID.
Taylor Woodrow share price
The company’s share price is printed in most UK daily
newspapers and is also available on the company’s website
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taylorwoodrow.com. It appears on Ceefax (BBC1 page 232,
BBC2 page 223 and C4 Teletext page 531) and may be obtained
by telephoning the Financial Times Cityline Service, telephone:
0906 0034177 or 0906 8434177 (calls cost 60p per minute).
Registrar
For enquiries concerning your shareholding or details of
shareholder services, please contact:
Capita Registrars, Balfour House, 390-398 High Road, Ilford,
Essex, IG1 1NQ
Telephone: 0870 1623103
E mail: ilfssd@capitaregistrars.com
Low-cost share dealing service
The company has arranged a low-cost share dealing service for
buying and selling shares in the company through HSBC Bank plc,
stockbrokers. For details and the necessary forms, contact the
Registrar or HSBC Bank plc Stockbrokers, 2nd Floor, Mariner House,
Pepys Street, London EC3N 4DA (Telephone 020 7260 0906).
Taylor Woodrow and ‘CREST’
Taylor Woodrow’s listed securities can be held in uncertificated
‘CREST’ accounts, which may make it quicker and easier for
shareholders to settle stock market transactions. Holders who
deal infrequently may, however, prefer to continue to hold their
shares in certificated form and the company will continue to
offer this facility for the time being.
Personal equity plan
The Taylor Woodrow General and Single Company PEPs,
which were open for investment through Bradford & Bingley
(PEPs) Limited up to 5 April 1999, are now managed by
The Share Centre, 1st floor, Oxford House, Oxford Road,
Aylesbury, Bucks HP21 8PB. Telephone: 01296 439000.
Gifting shares to charity
The company has made an arrangement with the Orr Mackintosh
Foundation Limited, a registered charity, enabling shareholders
to gift small shareholdings to the charity which in turn will
distribute the proceeds of the sale of the shares to various
recognised charities. Any shareholder who wishes to receive
further details should contact the Registrar.
Secretary and registered office
Richard I Morbey FCIS
2 Princes Way, Solihull, West Midlands B91 3ES
Auditors
Deloitte & Touche
Stockbrokers
HSBC Bank plc
UBS Warburg
Bankers
HSBC Bank plc
UBS Warburg
Corporate solicitors
Norton Rose

Principal Operating Companies

Taylor Woodrow is a housing and development
company, working across the UK and in
selected markets in North America, Spain and
Gibraltar. Our primary business is housing
which makes up 90 per cent of operating profit.

North America

UK

Europe

2
16

3
15

14

4
18

19 13 17

5
1 6
10

8 12

7

20

9
21

11

United Kingdom
1

UK Central Office
Taylor Woodrow plc
2 Princes Way, Solihull,
West Midlands B91 3ES
Tel: + 44 (0)121 600 8000
Fax: + 44 (0)121 600 8001
Email: twplc@uk.taylorwoodrow.com

8

London
Taylor Woodrow Developments
41 Claredon Road, Watford
Herts WD17 1TR
From May 2003: Contact Central
Office for phone numbers

9

South
Taylor Woodrow Developments
St Catherine’s House, Oxford Square
Oxford Road, Newbury RG14 1JQ
From April 2003: Contact Central
Office for phone numbers

10

South West
Taylor Woodrow Developments
Riverside Court, Bowling Hill
Chipping Sodbury
Bristol BS37 6JX
Tel: + 44 (0)1454 323 540
Fax: + 44 (0)1454 310 759

Regional Offices and Contacts
2

3

4

5

Inspired by the beautiful conservation villages of North Essex, our
RIBA award winning development, Bishops Mead at Chelmer Village,
Chelmsford, is designed to recreate a distinctive traditional architecture
with meticulous attention to detail and emphasis on craftsmanship.

Developing our

Designed by Sledge Limited
Printed by the colourhouse
This Annual Report is produced
from totally chlorine free (TCF) pulp
and from fully sustainable forests.

Scotland
Taylor Woodrow Developments
2 Garbett Road, Kirkton Campus
Livingston EH54 7DL
Tel: +44 0)1506 405 700
Fax: +44 (0)1506 405 701
North East and Yorkshire
Taylor Woodrow Developments
Boston House, 212-214 High Street
Boston Spa, West Yorkshire LS23 6AB
Tel: +44 (0)1937 523 333
Fax: +44 (0)1937 523 344
Offices moving May/June 2003
North West
Taylor Woodrow Developments
The Genesis Centre, Science Park South
Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7SP
Tel: +44 (0)1925 250 250
Fax: +44 (0)1925 250 251
East Midlands
Taylor Woodrow Developments
6 Dominus Way, Meridian Business Park
Leicester LE3 2RP
Tel: + 44 (0)116 282 0400
Fax: + 44 (0)116 289 1990

6

West Midlands
Taylor Woodrow Developments
2 Princes Way, Solihull
West Midlands B91 3ES
Tel: + 44 (0)121 600 8000
Fax: + 44 (0)121 600 8001

7

Eastern
Taylor Woodrow Developments
1 Barrett Lane, Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire CM23 2JT
Tel: + 44 (0)1279 712 901
Fax: + 44 (0)1279 758 660
Offices moving April/May 2003

11

12

South East
Taylor Woodrow Developments
5 Peverill Court, Beech Tree Close
London Road, Crawley
West Sussex RH10 8JB
Tel: + 44 (0)1293 583 460
Fax: + 44 (0)1293 583 461

15

California Division
15 Cushing
Irvine, CA 92618-4220
Tel: + 1 949 341 1200
Fax: + 1 949 341 1400

16

Canada Division
Monarch Development Corporation
Heron’s Hill,
2025 Sheppard Avenue East
Suite 1201
Toronto, Ontario
M2J 1V7 Canada
Tel: + 1 416 491 7440
Fax: + 1 416 491 3094

17

Florida Division
8430 Enterprise Circle
Bradenton, FL 34202
Tel: + 1 941 554 3000
Fax: + 1 941 554 3006

18

Texas Division
1515 South Capital of Texas Highway
Suite 110, Austin, TX 78746
Tel: + 1 512 347 8301
Fax: + 1 512 347 8369

19

U.S. High-Rise Division
877 Executive Center Drive West
Suite 205
St. Petersburg, FL 33702
Tel: + 1 727 563 9882
Fax: + 1 727 563 9674

Taylor Woodrow Construction Limited
41 Claredon Road, Watford
Herts WD17 1TR
From May 2003: Contact Central
Office for phone numbers

Europe - Spain and Gibraltar
North America
13

North American Central Office
Taylor Woodrow, Inc.
8430 Enterprise Circle
Bradenton, FL 34202
Tel: + 1 941 554 2000
Fax: + 1 941 554 3005
Email:
nacorporate@us.taylorwoodrow.com

14

Arizona Division
6710 North Scottsdale Road
Suite 100, Scottsdale
AZ 85253
Tel: + 1 480 344 7000
Fax: + 1 480 344 7001

20

Taylor Woodrow de España S.A.
C/Aragon, 223-223A
07008 Palma de Mallorca
Mallorca
Spain
Tel: + 34 971 706 570
Fax: + 34 971 706 565
Email: twe@es.taylorwoodrow.com

21

Taylor Woodrow (Gibraltar) Limited
R 23 Ragged Staff Wharf,
Queensway Quay
Queensway, PO Box 126, Gibraltar
Tel: + 350 78780
Fax: + 350 75529
Email: info@gi.taylorwoodrow.com

